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Financial Highlights
BB

Major Financial Indicators and Ratios

FERMBIRE LR

For the year ended 31st March
HE=-A=T—HBItFE

Operating results REXE
Revenue Wz

Gross profit EM
Operating profit R A

Net profit ol

Per share data sRER
(Loss)/earnings per share B (EER) &F
Total dividend per share B S
Net assets per share BREEFE
Financial position B RSk
Total assets BEBE

Net assets BESE
Financial ratio B it &
Current ratio (Times) MBI (1)
Quick ratio (Times) RENLE ()
Gross margin (%) FEFZE(%)

Net gearing ratio (%)

FEERBR(%)

Turnover ratio EEE =R
Inventory turnover FERE
Debtors turnover U BR A=
Creditors turnover FEf AR iR EE
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% changes

2017 2016 increase (decrease)
—E—+t5F —E—RF AN EE
HKS$ 000 HK$'000 #(m)
FHET FET
627,711 684,374 (8.3)
150,074 164,290 (8.7)
8,989 18,213 (50.6)
1,252 10,156 (87.7)
HK cents HK cents %
A4l Bl
1.9 (200)
1.0 -
90.8 (0.2)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
FHET T
317,028 337,756 (6.1)
181,121 181,580 (0.3)
2.0 10.0
0.8 -
24.0% (0.1%)
33.5% (14.7%)
Days %
H
142 -
32 (3.1)
33 (24.2)
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Financial Highlights
B

For the year ended 31st March &= = A=+—HILF/E

Revenue by Geographical Segments (by %)

Revenue by Business Segments (by %)
i b 4y JH 2 W i (3% A 43 L BER)

ARG B2 Wk (12 1 43 LR
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® Hong Kong &8 69% @ Electronic Trading Business & 7 & & %75 56%
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Europe B 1%
@ Others Efthib @ 2%
Revenue Profit (Loss) Attributable to Shareholders
W i JBE 3 A v A (s 48)
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0
300
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Shareholders’ Equity

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Earnings (Loss) per Share — Basic

Ji& SR i 5 &R (18 ) — B2 AR
HKS in million HK cents
BEET Al
200 4 3.89
166 165 166 163 45g 3
160
) 188
120 1 057 o051
80 0
-1
40
2 (1.88)
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CEQO’s Statement
FTBE R

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 31st March 2017, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$628 million, representing a decrease of
about 8.2% from approximately HK$684 million recorded in the last
year. Gross profit decreased by about 8.5% from approximately HK$164
million in the last year to approximately HK$150 million in this year,
while the gross profit margin slightly decreased by approximately 0.1% to
around 23.9% from about 24.0% in the last year. The Group's operating
profit decreased by around 50% to approximately HK$9.0 million (31st
March 2016: approximately HK$18 million), and the loss attributable to
shareholders was approximately HK$3.8 million (31st March 2016: profit
attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$3.8 million). This
represented loss per share of around HK$0.019 (earnings per share of
around HK$0.019 as at 31st March 2016). The Board has resolved that
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, a final dividend of HK0.5 cent per
ordinary share shall be declared for the year ended 31st March 2017,
totally HK$1 million to the shareholders whose names appeared on the
register of members of the Company on 15th August 2017. The final
dividend, if approved, is expected to be paid on 25th August 2017.

During the year under review, the Group continued to focus on its three
core business operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic
components, automation parts and equipment under the brand of e
(the “Electronic Trading Business”); and (2) the Computer Business which
includes (i) the retail sales of computer products and smartphone
accessories under the brand of EVideoom (the “Computer Retail
Business”) and (ii) the distribution of computer products and consumer
products under the brand of @ (the “Computer Distribution Business”);
and (3) the Cosmetic Retail Business under the brand of W'Shh' During
the year under review, the Group's revenue derived from the Electronic
Trading Business decreased by approximately 13.3% to about HK$351
million from approximately HK$405 million in the last year. Revenue from
the Computer Business was recorded as approximately HK$§108 million
which was the same as last year. Revenue from Cosmetic Retail Business
decreased slightly by 1.2% to approximately HK$169 million from
approximately HK$171 million in the last year.
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CEQO’s Statement
ATHE R

For the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group's total operating expenses
were approximately HK$155 million, representing an increase of about
4.7% (31st March 2016: approximately HK$148 million), among which the
distribution and selling expenses were approximately HK$51 million which
have increased by 2% from approximately HK$50 million recorded in the
last year. During the year under review, the general and administrative
expenses increased by about 6.1% to approximately HK$104 million
(31st March 2016: approximately HK$98 million). The Group adjusted its
store network, relocating certain shops in order to put the rental costs
under control in long run. The result has been that the Group has had to
pay duplicated rentals after opening nearby stores in better locations
during the transitional period. While the Group continued to control the
headcount and resources put in the Electronic Trading Business, the Group
allocated more resources to the Computer Business and Cosmetic Retail
Business. As at 31st March 2017, the headcount for the Electronic Trading
Business decreased from 307 full-time employees last year by about 11.1%
to 273 full-time employees while the headcount for the Computer Business
increased from 54 full-time employees last year by about 7.4% to 58 full-
time employees and the Group employed the same number of full-time
employees (i.e. 91) in the Cosmetic Retail Business as that of the last year.
Meanwhile, finance cost for the year under review was more or less the
same as last year at approximately HK$2.5 million.
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CEQO’s Statement
FTBE R

Development Strategy and Outlook

During the year under review, the global economy had remained laborious
due to uncertainties brought by the Brexit, the outcome of the US
presidential election, the slowdown of economic growth in China, and
interest rate hike in the USA, which leads to fluctuations in international
exchange rates. The unstable situation in the Middle East and Europe also
added uncertainties to the global market.

Depreciation of Renminbi, the appreciation of HK dollar as the result of its
peg with the strong US dollar, along with intense competition had made
visiting Hong Kong much more costly for travelers during the year under
review. The falling export and slowing economy in China further weakened
consumers’ confidence on the retail market. Nevertheless, the Group will
continuously monitor and adopt different kind of management strategies
to soothe the anxiety of customers and vendors in order to stabilize its
operating and financial performance.

Despite the lowering of rental of retail shops in first-tier areas and other
areas during the year under review, the benefit from reduction of rents was
almost offset by the downward movement of the retail sales. The domestic
sales are even harder to support the rental expenses. The Group will take
advantage of this opportunity to actively re-negotiate with landlords for
better renewal lease agreements or even close certain low-performing
shops so as to ensure a cost-effective operation.

With regard to its Electronic Trading Business, the Group will continue
to closely monitor its operating expenditure and will implement effective
cost control mechanisms in other regions to maximize overall profitability
of the Group. During the year under review, the Group controlled its
cost by downsizing the operations by approximately 11.1% in terms of
number of full time employees as compared with that of as recorded in
2016. To overcome the keen competition in electronic market, a series
of operational adjustments were introduced to the Group’s operation.
Besides radio frequency module for toys application, the Group expands
components for lighting industry in China. In addition, the Group plans
to introduce OSRAM lighting products, component and equipment from
suppliers in China to South Africa market. The Group will continue to seek
new business opportunities and maintain close relationships with vendors
to gain insights on industrial trends and new components.
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CEQO’s Statement
AT AR
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The Group has been aware of the recent boom in online shopping during
the year under review. With advanced technology, the younger generation
consumers who are keen on searching information through the internet
are able to shop anytime anywhere with any smart devices. The Group
has launched our own online store WISHH.com and cooperated with other
well known online shopping platforms to broaden the marketing channels
aiming at reaching more target customers. By providing physical retailing
experience and online shopping services to customers, the Group strives to
expand the customer base of its cosmetic and computer businesses.

Appreciation

I ' would like to thank our management team and all our staff members
for their effort and significant contribution to the Group during the past
year. In addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, institutional investors, customers, bankers and business
partners for their continuous support to and confidence in the Group.

By order of the Board
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22nd June 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PR i M g A

Business Review

During the year under review, the Group operated in three core business
operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components,
automation parts and equipment under the brand of MEe® (the “Electronic
Trading Business”); (2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the retail
sales of computer products and smartphone accessories under the brand
of mVid}ng?ﬂ (the “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of

“Computer Distribution Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic Retail Business
under the brand of W'Shh' The Electronic Trading Business, the Computer
Business and the Cosmetic Retail Business accounted for approximately
56%, 17% and 27% of the Group’s total revenue respectively for the year
under review.

By analysis on the three core business operations, the gross profit margin
of the Electronic Trading Business, the Computer Business and the
Cosmetic Retail Business were approximately 20.9%, 17.1% and 34.6%
(31st March 2016: approximately 20.4%, 19.1% and 35.7%) respectively
for the year ended 31st March 2017.

Electronic Trading Business

Hong Kong

Electronic Trading Business continues as the primary contributor to the
Group's revenue and profits during the year under review and recorded
revenue of approximately HK$351 million as compared with that of
approximately HK$405 million recorded in the last year, representing a
decrease of approximately 13.3% which was mainly due to unexpected
drop of China's global exports, the frustrated Eurozone market triggered
by the Brexit referendum and the unstable political situation in the Middle
East.

In addition, the revenue further shrunk because of the discontinuation of
distributorship from a major supplier with effective date on 31st October
2016. The revenue derived from this supplier was approximately HK§54
million during the year under review (as at 31st March 2016: approximately
HK$92 million).

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement as a distributor of
Rohm in order to diversify and gain further market share in the consumer
electronic products.

Overseas

During the year under review, the business of the Group's overseas
subsidiaries recorded a revenue of approximately HK$104 million (for the
year ended 31st March 2016: approximately HK$109 million), representing
a decrease of about 4.6%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PR i M g A

The Group's South Africa subsidiary recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$77 million, representing a decrease of about 6.1% from approximately
HK$82 million in the last year. The main reasons for the drop in revenue
were the slowdown of the South Africa economy to almost zero GPD
growth and the strengthening of the South African Rand that had slumped
against strong Hong Kong dollar for a few years has proportional and direct
impact on its revenue.

In terms of geographical segments, the revenue from Hong Kong, the Asia
Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and other
regions accounted for 69%, 16%, 12%, 1% and 2% respectively of the
Group's total revenue during the year under review.

Computer Business

Computer Retail Business

For the year ended 31st March 2017, the Computer Retail Business
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$25 million (31st March 2016:
approximately HK$27 million), representing a decrease of about 7.4%.
On the other hand, the Group recorded an improvement in the gross
profit margin in the Computer Retail Business as a result of introducing
new product lines which are popular and trendy products and toys. With
the satisfactory performance in Computer Retail Business, the Group is
continuing its search for some suitable location to increase the number of
shop in order to reach out for more target customers.

Computer Distribution Business

The revenue of the Computer Distribution Business recorded an increase
of about 2.5% to approximately HK$83 million (31st March 2016:
approximately HK$81 million). During the year under review, the Group has
focused on improving its procurement process to include better product mix
to satisfy customers’ needs and remain market competitive.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Cosmetic Retail Business

During the year under review, the plunge in the number of Mainland
Chinese visitors to Hong Kong after the implementation of “one-visit-one-
week” policy by the Central Government of China has an adverse impact on
the cosmetic retail market. The Group’s Cosmetic Retail Business reflected
a slight decrease of 1.2% in terms of revenue to approximately HK$169
million (31st March 2016: approximately HK$171 million), the revenue from
the second half of the year under review had experienced a downward
trend mainly due to the depreciation of Renminbi and the changing
consumer behaviour that have led to decreased spending by Mainland
Chinese visitors. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to devote resources
in marketing promotional activities to increase its brand awareness and
market share by rearranging its product mix. Due to the adverse cosmetic
retail environment, the Group will remain prudent with regard to the store
network expansion. The number of cosmetic retail stores as at 31st March
2017 was 36 which was reduced from 38 recorded as at 31st March 2016.
During the year under review, the Group opened 4 shops in the popular
shopping districts in Hong Kong, namely Causeway Bay, Mong Kok and
Tsim Sha Tsui and closed down 6 shops in shopping mall upon the expiry of
the relevant leases.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st March 2017, the Group’s cash and bank balances amounted
to approximately HK$46 million and the net current assets were
approximately HK$157 million. As at 31st March 2017, the current ratio
increased to approximately 2.2 (as at 31st March 2016: approximately 2.0).
Out of the Group's cash and bank balances, about 56% and 16% were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars respectively.
The balance of approximately 16%, 6%, 4%, 1%, and 1% of its total
cash and bank balances was denominated in Chinese Renminbi, South
African Rand, Malaysia Ringgit, New Taiwan dollars and Singaporean
dollars respectively. The Group's total assets amounted to approximately
HK$317 million (as at 31st March 2016: approximately HK$338 million).
Net assets per share amounted to approximately HK$0.91 (as at 31st
March 2016: approximately HK$0.91). Dividend and basic loss per share
were approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.019 respectively (as at 31st March
2016: approximately HK$0.01 and basic earnings per share HK$0.019
respectively).

The Group generally finances its operation by internally generated
resources and banking facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong. As at
31st March 2017, the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts, loans
and trade finance from banks totaling approximately HK$156 million (as at
31st March 2016: approximately HK$157 million), with an unused balance
of approximately HK$76 million (as at 31st March 2016: approximately
HK$56 million). The Directors believe that the Group’s existing financial
resources are sufficient to fulfill its current commitments and working
capital requirements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PR i M g A

Capital Structure

As at 31st March 2017, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$80 million (as at 31st March 2016: approximately
HK$101 million), which were in the form of short-term bank loans
(including short-term loans and trade finance) for financing the daily
business operations and future development plans. The majority of Group's
bank borrowings as at 31st March 2017 were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. These short-term loans and trade finance were secured by the
Company's corporate guarantees of approximately HK$152 million and the
leasehold properties in Singapore (as at 31st March 2016: HK$164 million),
with a maturity term of one to four months, and such short-term loans can
be rolled over afterwards at the Group's discretion.

During the year under review, the Group’s borrowings bore interest at rates
ranging from 2.20% to 3.50% per annum (as at 31st March 2016: ranging
from 1.88% to 3.46% per annum).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31st March 2017, the Group's gross borrowing repayable within one
year, amounted to approximately HK$80 million (as at 31st March 2016:
approximately HK$101 million). After deducting cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$46 million, the Group's net borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$34 million (as at 31st March 2016: approximately
HK$61 million). The total equity as at 31st March 2017 was approximately
HK$181 million (as at 31st March 2016: approximately HK$182 million).
Accordingly, the Group’s net gearing ratio, based on net borrowings to
total equity, decreased to 18.8% (as at 31st March 2016: 33.5%). The
decrease of net gearing ratio was mainly due to the decrease of bank
borrowings in relation to the Group’s strategy of slowing down the pace of
development in its Cosmetic Retail Business.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
Most of the Group's transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Chinese Renminbi and United States dollars. Given that the exchange rate
of Hong Kong dollars against Chinese Renminbi has been and is likely to
be under control and that the Hong Kong Government’s policy of pegging
the Hong Kong dollars to the United States dollars remains in effect, the
Directors consider that the risk facing by the Group on foreign exchange
will remain minimal and no hedging or other alternative measures have
been undertaken by the Group. As at 31st March 2017, the Group had no
significant risk exposure pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest
rates, currency swaps, or other financial derivatives.
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Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2017, the properties with carrying value of approximately
HK$10 million have been pledged to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group's subsidiary in Singapore.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March 2017, the Group had total outstanding operating
lease commitments of approximately HK$61 million (as at 31st March
2016: approximately HK$53 million). In view of the Group’s high level
of liquid funds, it is expected that the Group will be able to fulfill all
these commitments without any difficulty. The Group had no contingent
liabilities as at 31st March 2017.

Employment, Training and Remuneration Policy
As at 31st March 2017, the Group had a total of 422 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries. The Group
has developed its human resources policies and procedures based on the
performance, merits and market conditions. Remuneration packages are
normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other
staff benefits include provident fund contributions, medical insurance
coverage and performance-based bonuses (based on the Group's financial
results as well as individual performance).
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R AR B T

Executive Directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 56, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Chairman of the Company
(the "Chairman”). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in Business
Administration from Newport University in the United States. Dr. Hung
has more than 36 years of experience in the electronics industry, and is
responsible for the Group's strategic planning and corporate policies. He
is keen on nurturing the second generation to strengthen new business
management.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (the “"HKEIA") and
was nominated as Honorary Vice-chairman of the HKEIA in 2015.

He was appointed by the City University of Hong Kong as Honorary
Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the Industry Co-operative
Education Centre, and served as a member of the Electronics and
Telecommunications Training Board (2013 — 2017), Information Technology
Training and Development (2015 — 2017) and Innovation and Technology
Training Board (2017 — 2019) of Vocational Training Council.

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 55, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (the “Deputy
Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer (the "CEQ”) of the Company.
With more than 36 years of experience in the electronics industry, Ms.
Yeung is responsible for the Group’s finance, administration and internal
control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing
and new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In
2006, Ms. Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration
from Lincoln University in the United States.

In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, Ms. Yeung was invited to be the Adjunct Professor
in the Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong
(2014-2015) and Advisory Committee (2010—-2014) of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Electronics / Electrical Appliances Industries. She is
the wife of the Chairman, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R AR B T

Hung Ying Fung,

aged 53, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and both the computer and cosmetic
retail business development of the Group and has over 31 years of
experience in the electronics industry. In 2001, he was nominated as the
director of the Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company Limited.
Mr. Hung was nominated as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po
District Commerce and Industrial Liaison Committee (2014-2018) and the
CLP Local Customer Advisory Committee of Sham Shui Po District Tenure of
Office (2014—2017). He is the brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 54, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and business development
of the retail business in PRC and Asia Pacific region of the Group. He has
over 33 years of experience in the electronics and computer industry. He is
the brother of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl.

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho,

aged 59, Executive Director (resigned on 1st April 2016)

has been an executive director of the Company from June 2013 to 31st
March 2016. Despite his resignation as an executive director of the
Company, he is the director of five subsidiaries of the Company, namely
Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, Mantech Electronics (Proprietary)
Limited (“Mantech Electronics”), MBM Properties (Proprietary) Limited
(formerly known as AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited), Mobicon
International Limited and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited. Mr.
Moutinho has been appointed as an advisor to the Portuguese diaspora by
Portuguese World Council since February 2014.

Mr. Moutinho has been responsible for the business operations of the
Group in South Africa and he joined the Group in December 2001 when
Mantech Electronics was acquired by the Group. Mr. Moutinho obtained
his National Certificate in Electronics from the University of Johannesburg
(formerly known as Technikon Witwatersrand) in 1982 and matriculated
at the Johannesburg Technical College in South Africa in 1977. He is a
qualified electrical technician engineer.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile

R AR B T

Independent Non-executive Directors

Charles E. Chapman,

aged 68, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently
the independent non-executive director of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 595) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and a senior industry consultant for a number of overseas-based trade
fair organizers. He was the executive director of the HKEIA and managing
director of the HKEIA's subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong
Electronics Promotions Ltd. from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired.
Prior to joining HKEIA, Mr. Chapman worked for 12 years as economics
editor at the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and for 8 years as
business editor in a local English-language newspaper.

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 52, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Dr. Leung
is a qualified accountant and chartered secretary with over 28 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and financial management. He
graduated from Curtin University with a Bachelor of Commerce Degree
majoring in accounting and subsequently obtained a postgraduate diploma
in corporate administration, a Master degree of Professional Accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University, a Doctor degree of Philosophy
in Management from the Empresarial University of Costa Rica and a Doctor
degree of Education in Educational Management from Bulacan State
University. He is an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, the Hong Kong Institute Secretaries and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Dr. Leung is also a visiting lecturer of the
Hong Kong University (SPACE).

Ku Wing Hong, Eric,

aged 61, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He obtained an
Honorary Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and a Diploma in Education
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979 and 1985 respectively.
He joined De La Salle Secondary School, NT in 1981 and was appointed
Principal of the School in September 2004. He retired in August 2016 at
the age of 60. Mr. Ku had been the Vice-chairman of the Tai Po & North
District Secondary Schools Area Committee of The Hong Kong Schools
Sports Federation (the “Federation”) and the Chairman in the Federation’s
Tai Po & North District Competition Committee. He had also been the Vice-
Chairman of the North District Secondary School Principals’ Association.
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Senior Management

Wan Lam Keng,

aged 54, Senior Management

is the senior business manager of the Group. Ms. Wan joined the Group
in June 1988 and has over 29 years of experience in retailing and trading
business. She is responsible for the Group’s Urgent Requirement Service
division. She is the wife of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Ho Siu Wan,

aged 49, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of
the Company. She is responsible for the financial management as well
as human resources functions of the Group. Ms. Ho holds a professional
diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an assaciate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She joined the Group in May 2001 and has over 26 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, taxation and financial management.

Tsang Ka Man,

aged 48, Senior Management

is the sales and marketing director of Milliard Devices Limited. Mr. Tsang
graduated from the University of Sunderland with a Bachelor (Hons)
Degree in Digital Systems and Electronic Engineering. Before he joined the
Group in September 2001, he worked for a number of integrated circuit,
semiconductors (Brand from Japan, Korea, etc), sensors, radio frequency
and passive components companies as sales and marketing manager.
He is responsible for sales and marketing activities of integrated circuit,
sensors, radio frequency integrated circuit and passive components (i.e.
battery, motor, relay, crystal (oscillator) and inductors etc.) of the Company
in Hong Kong, China, Taiwan and South-East Asia market.

Lam Sun Hung,

aged 48, Senior Management

is the marketing director of APower Holdings Limited. He obtained a
Master of Business Administration from University of Wales (Newport).
He has engaged in the IT industry for more than 31 years and has in depth
understanding on the market trend and market demand. He has earned
rich and solid experiences in the operation of products agentship and
distribution. He has taken part in the industry of environmental protection
and energy conservation and to lead the Group into the environmental
protection market. Mr. Lam joined the Group in April 2002 and is focusing
on the development of agent line product and solution services business.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
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Hung Lok Lam, Joyce,

aged 27, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Videocom Technology (HK)
Limited. Ms. Hung joined the Group in August 2011 and is responsible
for overseeing the product development and brand management of wishh!,
and merchandising and marketing wide range of cosmetic products for the
customers of the Group. Ms. Hung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences
degree in Psychology from The University of Hong Kong. She is the
daughter of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the
niece of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the niece of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Hung Lok Tin,

aged 26, Senior Management

is the business development manager of A Plus 2 Computer Limited. Mr.
Hung joined the Group in January 2013 and is responsible for overseeing
the product development, merchandising and brand management of
[:AVideoCom \Mr. Hung holds a Bachelor of Asia-Pacific Studies degree from
the Australian National University and he was the Patron member of the
HKEIA (2015-2017). He is the son of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms.
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the nephew of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the nephew
of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Chooi Chow Sek, Jasmond,

aged 50, Senior Management

is the general manager of Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. in
Malaysia and Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. in Singapore. He
graduated from Federal Institute of Technology in Malaysia with a Diploma
in Electronic Engineering. Mr. Chooi joined the Group in July 2001 and
has over 25 years of experience in distribution of electronic components
and test and measurement instruments. He is currently responsible for the
overall operation of these two companies.
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Corporate Governance Report
SRR

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to principles of corporate governance practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year under review except for the
following deviations:

According to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company (the “INEDs") are not
appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law
111 of the Company's Bye-laws.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code provides that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws of the
Company provides that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman will not be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire. As continuation of the services of the
Chairman and the Deputy Chairman is a key factor to the successful
implementation of any long term business plan, the Board believes
that present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors have confirmed that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year under
review.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and senior management against any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, expenses and any proceedings brought against them, arising
from the performance of his/her duties as director or senior management
(as the case may be) of the Company. The current policy has been renewed
and shall be under constant review.
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Board of Directors

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share
value.

The Board comprises a total of seven directors (excluding Mr. Manuel
Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho who resigned on 1st April 2016), with four
executive directors, namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms.
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and CEQ), Mr. Hung Ying Fung,
and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. One of the
INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules.
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure. She is
also the sister of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Mr. Hung Ying Fung is the
brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Group. To enhance the standard of corporate
governance, the Company also adopted a board diversity policy on 29th
August 2013. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 16
to 18 of this annual report.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business
strategies and annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group
and oversight of the management. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board such that the Board acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed and approved by the Board before
execution. All directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and adequate and reliable information is given to the Board in a
timely manner.

The CEO is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The
CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group's
operations.
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The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting on the request of
any one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to all
directors. The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not less
than three days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to clearly
understand and make informed decisions on all matters to be raised,
discussed and resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary
who is also the financial controller of the Group shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. The directors shall have
full access to information on the Group and arrangement has been in place
to enable directors to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.

Four regular Board meetings of the year under review were scheduled
in advance at approximately quarterly intervals; the other two Board
meetings had been convened in relation to the discussions of two
continued connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The directors can attend meetings in person or by means of a
conference telephone or other communications facilities in accordance
with Bye-law 136 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The senior management is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control
and corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Group’s performance and financial position.

During the year, the Company had arranged an in-house training session
to the directors on the implications of late disclosure of inside information
from recent cases. In addition, the directors had attended external courses,
conferences and luncheons organised by various organisations to further
enhance their capacities to carry out director’s duties.

The directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial
updates and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and
regulatory developments.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

There is no specific term of the appointment of INEDs. However, they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws
of the Company. This deviates from the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code
which requires that non-executive directors be appointed for specific terms
subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Board considers
that this current practice is fair and reasonable and does not intend to
change this practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting. Currently, two directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

According to Bye-law of 117 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members
may, at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a
director at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office
provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of
removing a director shall contain a statement of the intention so to do and
be served on such director not less than 14 days before the meeting and at
such meeting, such director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for
his/her removal.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 29th August 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in corporate governance reports.

Remuneration Committee and Directors’
Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on
20th February 2006 to assist the board of directors of the Company to
oversee the remuneration packages of and determine the remuneration
structure of the executive directors and senior management of the
Group. Its current members are Dr. Leung Wai Cheung, Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference including the duties of
the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

With effect from the fiscal year 2016/2017, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the management bonus package mechanism of executive directors
which provides that the aggregate amount of management bonuses
payable to all directors in respect of any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits
of the Group is HK$8 million or above but is less than HK$11 million;
and (ii) 10% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group
is HK$11 million or above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee
also approved to delegate the authority to the Chairman of the Group to
determine the distribution level on the management bonus payout to all
executive directors and each executive director shall entitle to not less
than 10% of the aggregate amount of the management bonuses.
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On 14th February 2017, the Remuneration Committee resolved that the
management bonus package mechanism of executive directors for the
fiscal year 2017/18 shall be maintained at same level as that for the fiscal
year 2016/17.

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the executive
directors and senior management whose names appear in the
“Directors” and Senior Management's Profile” section for the year:

— e P

R-F—LF_A+WA  FMZESHRN -
Tt/ - \FUHRFENTESEIRA
AR EREZRIN _T—RE T+t
FHRFEOFR—KF

TRIEBI TEERESREREHN | —E2H
TEEMERERBNAFEZMEAR) :

HK$ Number of persons
BT AE
500,001 — 1,000,000 6
1 —500,000 6
Total number of persons 48 A &% 12
Nomination Committee RBEERE

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 28th
March 2012 to lead the process for the appointment of directors of the
Company. Its current members are Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Mr.
Charles E. Chapman and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung. Dr. Hung is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference including the
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The minutes of the Nomination Committee meeting was tabled to
the Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 18th April 2001
to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
system of the Company.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Audit Committee was
amended on 18th February 2016 and the amended version has been posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for
noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
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During the meetings held in the year under review, the Audit Committee
had performed the following work:

(i) reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year
ended 31st March 2016 and the interim results and the financial
reports for the six months ended 30th September 2016;

(i1) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit
on the operations and performance of the Group;

(iii) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules
and other statutory compliance;

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems of the Group;

(v) reviewed the external auditors” management letter and management'’s
response; and

(vi) reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the 2016/2017
audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.

Attendance of Individual Directors

The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General
Meetings during the year under review is set out in the table below.
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Number of meeting(s) attended/held in 2016/2017

RZB-X/-B—tF

HE/ETEENE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
Name of Director EEnE EZg88 ENZESER FMZESEE REZEEEE RRBEFAE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HRlzEL 6/6 N/ARER N/ATEA 11 1
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEERL 6/6 N/ATE ”n N/AT 1
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HHEESE 6/6 N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ANEF n
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BERLE 6/6 N/ATE A N/ATE A N/ANEF n
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. ChapmanZt & 6/6 4/4 N/ATEA N 11
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung RENEL 6/6 44 " /1 111
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HKEEE 6/6 4/4 i N/AT & 1/1
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group.

As at 31st March 2017, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 48 to 50
of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31st March 2017, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as
follows:

Friz AR %

Services rendered
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and the review of their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to identify, analyze, evaluate and mitigate risk
exposures that may impact the continued efficiency and effectiveness of
our operation or prevent it from achieving its business objectives.

The risk management process of the Group is coordinated and facilitated
by our compliance officer. The objectives of risk management are to, inter
alia, enhance the Company's governance and corporate management
processes as well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable
levels of risks and losses. The risk management process of the Group
will involve, inter alia, (i) an annual risk identification exercise which
involves assessment of the consequence and likelihood of risks (including
documenting those of potentially high impact) and the development
and/or review of risk management plans for mitigating such risks; (ii)
testing of documented risk management procedures at approval intervals;
and (iii) providing our staff and other stakeholders appropriate and
reasonable access to relevant information and training in the area of risk
management.

Our internal control staff has performed an assessment on our internal
control systems including reviewing guidelines and policies which are
implemented through our operational process and the results of the same
has been reported to the Board. An internal audit function is set up to
examine key issues in relation to the financial and operational matters/
practices and to provide its findings and any recommendations for
improvement to the Audit Committee.

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information,
procedures have been implemented by the Group to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of information are strictly prohibited.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, the Board, as supported by the
Audit Committee, our compliance officer and internal audit function,
reviewed the risk management and internal control systems, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls, for the mentioned period,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit function and
staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources in respect thereof.
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Investor Relations and Communications

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board; (ii) updated company news and published announcements of
the Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) different means are opened to the shareholders and
investors for communication channel such as (a) by mail to the Company's
head office at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San
Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong; (b) by telephone at (852) 2397 6628; or (c)
by fax at (852) 2397 0339.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises
the Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that she has complied with
all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Right

(i) Procedures by which shareholders can convene a
Special General Meeting (the “SGM”)
The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company upon
which all calls or other sums then due have been paid, forthwith
proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of the
original deposit.
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(i)

(iii)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at General
Meetings (the “GM”)

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or who are
no less than 100 shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed by all of
the shareholders concerned and be deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend
Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the GM in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the GM in case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board of Directors to
include the resolution in the agenda for the meeting provided
that the shareholders concerned have deposited a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing with contact information of the requisitionists
and deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road
East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents
During the year under review, there has no change in the Company's
Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws.

(ii)

(iii)
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The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31st March 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic parts,
components and equipment and computer products and mobile accessories
and trading of beauty products.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), is
set out in the sections “CEQ’s Statement” on pages 7 to 10 and “Business
review” on pages 11 to 13, of this Annual Report respectively. An analysis
using financial key performance indicators, a discussion of the Group's
environmental policies and performance, and its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
as well as an account of the key relationships with its stakeholders are set
out in the sections “Five Year Financial Summary” on pages 139 and 140,
“Revenue and Segment Information” on pages 94 to 99, “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” and “Major Customers and Suppliers” of
this Report of the Directors on page 39 respectively. The above discussions
form part of this Directors’ Report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2017 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 51 and 52 respectively.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary

share, totalling HK$1 million, which was paid on 20th December 2016.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$1 million for the year ended 31st March 2017.
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Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 3rd August
2017 to 8th August 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to ascertain the right to attend
the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 2nd August 2017.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 12th August
2017 to 15th August 2017, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected, and the final dividend will be paid on 25th August 2017. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on 11th August 2017.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$143,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company’s listed shares during the year ended 31st March 2017.
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Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho
(resigned on 1st April 2016)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho (“Mr. Moutinho”) resigned on
1st April 2016 as executive director of the Company due to his health
condition. Mr. Moutinho has confirmed that he has no disagreement with
the board of directors and nothing relating to the affairs of the Company
needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Hung Ying Fung and Mr. Charles E. Chapman are required to retire
by rotation under the Company’s bye-laws and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure who did not enter into any service contract with the Company)
has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed
term of three years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

— e P

HH
FRRBEAREAPZETEFOT

HiTEH

ARG T (EE)

SREL T (G EEFTHAAZ)

HEELE

THEIR L &

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinhot 4
(RZZT—RFMHA—HEE)

Bk PATHE S
Charles E. Chapman %t 4
REFEE T
HoK R E

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho %t 4 ([ Moutinho%t
A NDEREREEAOR S —NFENA—BEE
NRABAITEZE - Moutinho L £ #ERR - 1R 62
EEEUWREERSE  TEEMNEEAQRZE
BAMSAQNTRRE

RIEARQFT 2 ARMEA - Iz 54 KCharles E.
Chapmanft £ 7B R EE BB F A EHESR -
MEEEERWFEESERET -

HRRE A K
ERBZFHITEF OB EF LRI - REXR
A AT AT AR k) B & B BARRET L
WEa#h B-_TZ—FOA-BREFINFEE
THMA=F HER—EFE BERHEF—TIAS
—HEBERTOR=ZEAZETBANTURLES
1k e

BREXEREIN  HREERRAEFASERE
FZESEHBEARBTLARR AR —FAN
RATERE ORERERIN FARIEZ RIFAL

34

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2017



Report of the Directors
EH G

Share Option Scheme

On 8th August 2003, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the”New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the eligible persons
may be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) upon and subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the
New Share Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme is in line with
current Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Since the adoption, no options have been granted under the New Share
Option Scheme up to the date of this report. The New Share Option
Scheme expired on 7th August 2013.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities

As at 31st March 2017, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

(i)  Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company
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Number of shares

R4 B
Long/short Personal Family Corporate

Name of Director position interests interests interests Percentage
EEpnR "a/ %A B AR RikER NRER Bk
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Long - 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
Rl EtE T A (Note a)

(PffzEa)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long - 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
BEER L ey ) (Note a)

(PffsEa)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 26,990,000 - - 13.50%
HERERAE A
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long - 30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
5 BRI = HE (Note b)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in & 35 5 47 B 28 3002 JBE AN B 15 7% 38 3%

Equity and Debt Securities (continued) ZHELR ()
(i) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company (i) A2 vl 4 JB i {5 0.10 # 50 = 3% 8 1B
(continued) (&)
Notes: BT
(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to (a) It %47 FAM2B Holding Limited$ & » 22
50% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife, AR AR EIE T HB50% - ek T50%A)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl. Accordingly, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and HEZTHEEL LIRS - At - RIKE
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were deemed to be interested in 90,000,000 FREEEA - talEE T RIGHELZ LT
shares of the Company under SFO. Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. % 4% YE7290,000,000 A8 A A RIAR 5 A
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same interest and duplicated s o AR EH T RGEELTHEAZE
each other. wIERN KRG R - WEARERE -
(b) These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company (b) 1Ht %5 1% 47 B3 Bestmark Management Limited$§
owned as to 50% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50% B ZARIBGEBREEEANS - T
by his wife, Ms. Wan Lam Keng. Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, PRT50% A EEFEMBL LTS -
Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were deemed to be interested in 30,000,000 bt RIBEES RBE GO - HEREE
shares of the Company under SFO. The interests of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, K2 MRI8 22 £ 445 1 74 30,000,000 X 78 22
Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and AIRDFHEEER - BEREEREMNK
duplicated each other. Bt HEzERERNRGOER

YERERE -

(i) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in a (i) P& 2 % & BR A R A w (THE

subsidiary — Maxfair Distribution Limited (“Maxfair”) A 1) B B 1 AE 1.00 9 JT 2 fE £ 52 HE
0B JE Iy
As at 31st March 2017, each of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Ms. R-ZF—tHF=A=+—0 HAf=i8
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, Mr. Hung Ying Fung and Mr. Yeung Kwok T BEBELZtT o AERELEERGER
Leung, Allix has beneficial interests in his/her personal capacity in REZSBNEAAGDBEEESR THIHA
the following number of non-voting deferred shares in Maxfair: Z B RERFERELTRN
Number of

Nature of Long/short non-voting
Name of Director interest position deferred shares Percentage
EEnE ERtE HE/ KR RAERDEER Btk
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Personal Long 300,000 30%
Huledt EA He
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Personal Long 300,000 30%
HEEL L & A "e
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Personal Long 200,000 20%
HREELE EA He
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Personal Long 200,000 20%
HEIRE A EA "e
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)

(ii)

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in a
subsidiary — Maxfair Distribution Limited (“Maxfair”)
(continued)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain non-beneficial
ordinary shares of the subsidiaries held in bare trust for the Group,
as at 31st March 2017, none of the directors or the chief executive
of the Company had an interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ) as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code.

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year, the directors and
the chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been
granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares (or
warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the Company and/or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries, its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries
or its holding company a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors or the chief executive of the Company to hold any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the SFO).
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the year ended 31st March 2017, the Company had adopted a Code
of Conduct regarding directors’ transactions in securities of the Company
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable
enquires with the directors of the Company, the Company was of view that
the directors had complied with the said Code of Conduct throughout the
year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2017, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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Number of shares

R BB
Long/short Beneficial Family
Name position owner interest Percentage
8 A HR/ KR BREEEA Rk R Btk
M2B Holding Limited Long 90,000,000 - 45%
ey} (Note (a))
(M45E(a))
Bestmark Management Limited Long 30,000,000 - 15%
HeE (Note (b))
(K EE(b)
Ms. Wan Lam Keng Long - 30,000,000 15%
EMBL L HRE (Note (b))
(FfE(b)
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

(continued)
Notes:
(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors’” and Chief Executive's

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”.

(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. The interests of Bestmark Management
Limited and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated
each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2017, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the Group sold less than 10% of its goods to its five
largest customers.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's
major suppliers are as follows:

10%
25%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in,
apart from the Group’s business, any business which competes or is likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements also constituted continuing connected transactions
and connected transactions for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of such connected transactions are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions

1. The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from
M-Bar Limited (“M-Bar"). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned
as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive
directors of the Company.

(a) On 30th September 2013, Mobicon Holdings Limited (“MHL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new
tenancy agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreements in
respect of Private Car Parking Space Nos. 6, 7, 24 and 25 on 3rd
Floor, Private Car Parking Space Nos. 6 and 13 on 4th Floor, Units
1=11 on 7th Floor, Units 1-4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd
Floor, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King
Fuk Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (collectively, the
“Properties”) for a term of three years from 1st October 2013 to
30th September 2016, of which for the period from 1st October
2013 to 31st January 2014, the aggregate monthly rental of the
new tenancy agreement was of HK$213,000 and for the period
from 1st February 2014 to 30th September 2016, the aggregate
monthly rental of the new tenancy agreement was of HK$222,000.

On 30th September 2016, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the tenancies in respect of
the same premises for a term of three years from 1st October
2016 to 30th September 2019 at an aggregate monthly rental of
HK$234,000.

The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the Group
and ancillary use.

(b) On 30th September 2013, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M Bar to renew the lease agreement in respect
of Portion of 1st Floor and 3rd Floor, Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau
Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of three years
commencing from 1st October 2013 to 30th September 2016, at an
aggregated monthly rental of HK$105,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

(b)

(continued)

On 30th September 2016, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the tenancies in respect of
the same premises for a term of three years from 1st October
2016 to 30th September 2019 at an aggregate monthly rental of
HK$135,000.

The leased premises are used as storage with ancillary office (in
respect of Portion of 1st Floor) and godown for storage (in respect
of 3rd Floor).

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
approximately HK$3,254,000 (Note 26) to M-Bar.

On 30th September 2013, Mantech Electronics (Proprietary)
Limited (“Mantech Electronics”) as tenant, an indirect 51% owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new lease agreement
with UGD Property (Proprietary) Limited ("UGD Property”), in
respect of Erf 45, 47 and 49, New Centre Township, 30 and 32 Laub
Street, New Centre, Johannesburg in South Africa for a term of
three years commencing from 1st October 2013 to 30th September
2016 at monthly rentals of (i) ZAR 113,294 (approximately
HK$88,483) per month for the period from 1st October 2013 to 30th
September 2014; (ii) ZAR 119,526 (approximately HK$93,349) per
month for the period from 1st October 2014 to 30th September
2015; and (i) ZAR 126,099 (approximately HK$98,484) per month
for the period from 1st October 2015 to 30th September 2016. UGD
Property is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a director of
Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, Mantech Electronics, MBM
Properties (Proprietary) Limited (formerly known as AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited), Mobicon International Limited and Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited (all are subsidiaries of the Company)
and owns 49% interest in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.

The leased premises are used for office purpose for the Group's
operations in South Africa.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
approximately HK$1,019,000 (Note 26) to UGD Property.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

3.

On 30th September 2013, Mantech Electronics as tenant entered
into the new lease agreement with Tiger Moth Trading No.53
(Proprietary) Limited (“Tiger Moth”), in respect of 12 Lennox
Road, Greyville, Durban in South Africa for a term of three years
commencing from 1st October 2013 to 30th September 2016 at
monthly rentals of (i) ZAR 31,006 (approximately HK$24,216) per
month for the period from 1st October 2013 to 30th September
2014; (ii) ZAR 32,712 (approximately HK$25,548) per month for
the period from 1st October 2014 to 30th September 2015; and
(iii) ZAR 34,511 (approximately HK$26,953) per month for the
period from 1st October 2015 to 30th September 2016. Tiger
Moth is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a director of
Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, Mantech Electronics, MBM
Properties (Proprietary) Limited (formerly known as AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited), Mobicon International Limited and Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited (all are subsidiaries of the Company)
and owns 49% interest in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.

The leased premises are used for office purpose for the Group's
operations in South Africa.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$Nil (Note 26) to Tiger Moth.

On 1st April 2014, the Group has entered into a supply agreement
with PC Supply Limited (“PC Supply”) for the supply of IC, passive
components and equipment, and computer; and supply of IT
support and services to the PC Supply and its subsidiaries (“PC
Supply Group”). The supply agreement with PC Supply was at
a term of three years commencing from 1st April 2014 to 31
March 2017 at maximum sales amount of (i) HK$2,000,000 for the
period from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2015; (ii) HK$2,500,000
for the period from 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016; and (iii)
HK$3,000,000 for the period from 1st April 2016 to 31st March
2017. PC Supply is owned as t0 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus
Computer Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
respectively. A Plus is owned as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying
Fung and as to the remaining 20% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,
all of whom being the executive directors of the Company.

During the year, the Group sold goods amounting to approximately
HK$2,171,000 (Note 26) to PC Supply Group.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

5. On 1st April 2014, the Group entered into a purchase agreement
with PC Supply Limited (“PC Supply”) for the purchase of liquid
crystal display, and mobile and computer accessories from PC
Supply and its subsidiaries ("PC Supply Group”). The purchase
agreement with PC Supply was at a term of three years
commencing from 1st April 2014 to 31st March 2017 at maximum
purchases amount of (i) HK$3,000,000 for the period from 1st April
2014 to 31st March 2015; (ii) HK$3,500,000 for the period from
1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016; and (iii) HK$4,000,000 for the
period from 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017. PC Supply is owned
as t0 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer Shop Limited (“A
Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus is owned
as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive
directors of the Company.

During the year, the Group purchased goods amounting to
approximately HK$1,135,000 (Note 26) from PC Supply Group.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) consider
these continuing connected transactions have been conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal commercial
terms and continuation of these transactions in the future will be
beneficial to the Group.

These continuing connected transactions have also been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company who have confirmed
that such continuing connected transactions have been (a) entered into by
the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b)
conducted on normal commercial terms; and (c) entered into in accordance
with the terms of the lease agreements governing the transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole. The independent non-executive directors
of the Company have also confirmed that the aggregate value of the
transactions were within the respective maximum amounts as agreed with
the Stock Exchange.

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed to the Board that these
continuing connected transactions have received the approval of the Board
and have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the lease
agreements governing the transactions. The auditors of the Company have
also confirmed that the aggregate value of the transactions were within
the respective maximum amounts as agreed with the Stock Exchange.
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Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due, or (ii) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$78,212,000 (2016: HK$68,678,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 139 and 140.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2017
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22nd June 2017
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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B g E KT R A

Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
MOBICON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mobicon
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the "Group”) set out on pages 51 to 138, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st March 2017, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Inventory valuation and allowance

A7 B A AE K 48 s

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
BRI E B HRERMFET -

At 31st March 2017, the Group held gross inventories of °
approximately HK$179,548,000. As described in the accounting
policies in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable

value. As a result, Management assesses the net realizable value

of slow moving stocks with reference to the stock ageing report. D
Stocks are written down to their net realizable value where this
falls below their cost.

RZE—EF=A=+—H E5EFENGFEELEENAR
179,548,000/ 7T ° #AN4R S PSR M 5122 G RTECR Pl - 75
BIRKAES I SRFE(UNRKRERE) AR - At - B2
BR2ZGFEREKREETEFHEFENAZRFE - 178
KEEPEKAE - FEMRZEE A #IRFE - .

Valuation of trade receivables

JFEE WS¢ B 5 R K ) A AL

Refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
BRI A T IREMFES -

As at 31st March 2017, trade receivables amounted to °
approximately HK$47,078,000 (net of provision for impairment of

trade receivables of approximately HK$597,000).
RZTE—+F=A=+—H  BRESKRZKL 47,078,000

P IT (B MR EWE 5 IR OB [E B £1597,000/8 ) ° o

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the size of the balance and the use of
judgement and estimates in assessing the recoverability of trade
receivables.

ER AR B - I EERHE R ICE 5 AR & AT UK [ B 55
%Q%Jlﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ IR MR RN E SRR ERERE
FTERIE ©

In determining the allowance for trade receivables, Management
considers the credit history including default or delay in
payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements and
ageing analysis of the trade receivables.
EETESREGETNEER ERESZEREELE 25

2B S RBERFNERSEHERIER B0 BEENR

BREC DA © o

[BR 4 % sl S JH

BB EELRERMOGLIN - BAUA
R AR BRERNBEH RABBNEE - ELE
ERERMBHEREAHERRREABRE
EITREN - RATEHELEREREBNE
"o

Evaluating whether inventories were stated at the
lower of cost and net realizable value at the reporting
date by comparing the sales prices of inventories
subsequent to the reporting date with their carrying
values as at 31st March 2017,

FREREEHE FEEBHEFENR T —+F
ZA=T—RAZREBEELR - FERSESHBF
BB RKAMES A ZHRFEARIEE BE) I

Checking for individual products that invoiced costs
have been correctly recorded; and
RESEGENERD FRIHCEZER &k

Assessing whether items in the inventory ageing report
were classified within the appropriate ageing category
by comparing individual items in the report with the
underlying documentation.

7 8 17 B PR e RS A B =M ME B TE B ERAR B S
ELLE - SHEFEREREANNER T EHBEANE
EHERERRR

Assessing whether items in the trade debtors ™ ageing
report were classified within the appropriate ageing
category by comparing individual items in the report
with underlying documentation;
FRGEKE SRS IR RS Ny & & 2538 B 6
MBS ELL R - AR E 5 R R ®E AR
BB REHBENAEREER

Reviewing the ageing analysis of the trade receivables
throughout the year to understand the settlement
patterns by the customers; and
EHREKESERBEFECRRONT  ATHRE
PzEMER &

Testing subsequent settlement of trade receivable
balances and assessing the reasonableness of
recoverability of receivables that were past due with
reference to the credit history of those customers,
including default or delay in payments, settlement
records and correspondence and ageing analysis of
each individual customer.
2EXPHNEELHBESRERR PRI A
HBRIER - B85 RBAA KRR DT - DR
HE SRR AR EEEN - LR AEEHE
WRIER B E S IR 1 o
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Independent Auditors’ Report
WAL SR

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and The Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

R EE———=

oAt 5 B8,
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BRERANES - EFREEARNBRERR
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Independent Auditors’ Report
WS rAZ SR o

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

R EEEEE—S———S———————

A% B B g 2 W A% A O R S R IR
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RMWE T EHEANBRRERRTTHE
R S AT S B EA SRR S A 12
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B MT(EARE)RE - Btz SNSRI
Hb B - RITEHARE AT AEF M
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R - ETRRBRR(E BB LTHE
i ER-BEAHRBULGER SRS - 53R
B AT A s KR S R 12 - IR A B HEHIE M
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FRTI TS SRR A AE H VG DATE - RIB BARVSEARIR
A AR EE A -

EREE B EETESBIET - HFE
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Independent Auditors’ Report
WAL SR

R EE———=

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

A2 B 2 B A U R R R AR I

M=)

s UEEEBREQEEHERMBREM
Vel B - BIBFFEMABIRE - B
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Independent Auditors’ Report
WS rAZ SR o

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Kwok Kin Leung.
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P05769

Hong Kong, 22nd June 2017

R EEEEE—S———S———————
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
LAEEER

For the year ended 31st March 2017 BlZE —E—+F=H=+T—HILFE

Revenue Wz 627,771 684,374
Cost of sales SHEE AN (477,697) (520,084)
Gross profit ES 150,074 164,290
Other income, gains and losses Hipg A - Wz L EiE 14111 1,892
Distribution and selling expenses SR NEB R (50,790) (50,308)
General and administrative expenses ~ —fRRITHEEEH (104,406) (97,661)
Operating profit 4K | 8,989 18,213
Finance costs Bl B AN (2,496) (2,438)
Share of loss of an associate FEAE — B2 N R E 18 = (32)
Profit before income tax BT ER AR 15,743
Income tax expense A5 iR 2 (5.587)
Profit for the year F R 10,156
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE(E (E1R), % H
Equity holders of the Company RRARERHIEEA 3,766
Non-controlling interests Bl 6,390
10,156

(Loss)/earnings per share attributable &£ R ANA M55 AFE
to the equity holders of the Company  {5& KR (EE),~
during the year &F|

— Basic and diluted —E AR REE 10 HK cents 1.88

(HK cents 1.88)
(1.885811l1) 188781l

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial &% B ERLE S BB REMTE1IHE o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SN TS

For the year ended 31st March 2017 BlZE—F—+F=H=+T—HILFE

Profit for the year F R 10,156
Other comprehensive Ht2EmBA A (FX)

income/(expense)
Items that may be reclassified B &7 EEEm

subsequently to profit or loss HH
Currency translation differences: EEmEERs
— Subsidiaries —HEBAF (8,368)
— Associate ——EEE QT (7)
Release of translation reserve upon HERB AR

disposals of subsidiaries ERGRERE 29
Release of translation reserve upon o E — R A R

disposal of an associate BRI E S -
Item that will not be reclassified HEETEEHEE

subsequently to profit or loss BB H
Revaluation losses on property, plant &4 %% - BMER

and equipment B BB (357)
Other comprehensive income/(expense), E#ib2mERA (L)

net of tax (BHRHE) (8,441)
Total comprehensive income 2HEWB AL 1,715
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FE(G 2 E U A (BIS) &

attributable to: B
Equity holders of the Company RABVEEFEE A (3,007) (517)
Non-controlling interests JEIR R RS 8,033 2,232

5,026 1,715
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R EAR DR

As at 31st March 2017 A-—ZE—+F=A=+—H

Non-current assets

FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment WE - BEREE 14
Interests in associates N AN v 16(a)
Other receivables ot fE U R IE

Current assets REBEE

Inventories =g 17
Trade receivables FEME 5 BR K 18
Other receivables and deposits Hib W EOE RiRke 26(b)
Current income tax recoverable AT U Bl B ER P15 AR

Cash and bank balances B MBS 19
Total assets EELE

Current liabilities REBEE

Trade payables FERE S ERK 20
Other payables and accruals HibENZUERETER  26(c)&(d)
Finance lease liabilities BMEHERE 22
Amount due to an associate JE 1~ — R B & 2 RI5R IR 16(b)
Short-term bank loans WHRITE R 21
Current income tax liabilities BUERFTSHiB &

Net current assets REBEEFE

18,461 20,942

5,376 -

23,837 20,942

179,548 192,763
47,078 58,050
19,693 25,449

1,134 589
45,738 39,963

293,191 316,814

317,028 337,756

31,627 31,692
23,711 22,228
13 -

= 13
80,200 100,828
214 1,415
135,855 156,176
157,336 160,638

BREAKEERQE - —2—tFFRH
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR ETIABSIR DL

As at 31st March 2017 A-—Z—+F=A=+—H

Total assets less current liabilities

EERERRBEE 181,173

181,580

Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Finance lease liabilities REHEaR 22 52 -
52 -
Net assets BEFE 181,121 181,580
Capital and reserves attributable  &AFERIZFEA
to the equity holders of the EERAREE
Company
Share capital [N 23 20,000 20,000
Reserves i 138,706 143,456
158,706 163,456
Non-controlling interests FIERESR 22,415 18,124
Total equity R 181,121 181,580

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for GA B BRERENR _E—+EA -+ -_HEE
issue by the Board of Directors on 22nd June 2017 and signed on its behalf ~ E&#L /&R ZETE  YHTIEERXEEZS

by: ®BE
HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
ik 2 B8
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
E B E AR TGRS,
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR ER

For the year ended 31st March 2017 HZE—ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

Balance at 1st April 2015 RZE-1EMA-A
LR 20,000 16,706 800 (8,915 6528 13084 145913 15892 181865
Total comprehensive income for the year  FRZEUNEE - - - [39%) (357 3766 B 223 1715

Release of revaluation reserve upon nE - BELRETER
depreciation of property, plant and L E

equipment - - - - (112) 112 - - -
Dividends of the Company: ARARE :
2015 final dividend “E-RERERS - - - - - (1,000 (1,000] - (1,000)
2018 interim dividend “E-NERERS - - - - - (10000 (1,000 - [1,000]
Balance at 31st March 2016 RZE-RE
ZA=t-Regs 20,000 16,706 800 (12841) 6,059 132732 143456 18124 181,580
Representing: RER:
2016 final dividend “E-NERERS 1,000
Others Eth 131732
132732
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR ER

For the year ended 31st March 2017 HZE—ZT—+F=A=+—HIFE

Balance at 1st April 2016 RZE-RERA-R
a3 20,000 16,706 800 (12841) 6,009 13273 143456 18124 181,580
Total comprehensive income for the year  ER2EW L8 - - - 1,100 (344 (3,763 (3.007) 8,033 5,026

Acquisition of additional interest in hE-RNELRENER

a subsidiary - - - - - Pl 27 3810 4067
Release of revaluation reserve upon 0% BERRENES
depreciation of property, plant and BREEE
equipment - - - - [213) 13 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests R kiR 2 RS - - - - - - - 1) (758
Dividends of the Company: FRARE
2016 final dividend “E-RERERE - - - - - (1,000) (1,000) - (1,000)
2017 interim dividend “E-rEdERS - - - - - (10000 {1,000 - {1,000
Balance at 31st March 2017 WoE-tE
SR=T-Rz&8 20,000 16,706 800 (11.41) 5502 127439 138,706 nMs 1N
Representing; BER:
2017 final dividend “E-+ERERS 1,000
Others £ 126439
121439
Note: PEE -

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary shares ~ BRAGEE HDIEAARIBHTE BRI EAE - BIBE T
issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of ~ —%F A +/\B#ETZ BAIRRG 152 M E A RIRA
subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took A1 ERR 1) B 2 AR E 2 Y Z 5 ©

place on 18th April 2001.

56 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EB SRR
For the year ended 31st March 2017 Bl E —E—+tF =H=1+—HIFE

Cash flows from operating activities K&EKELCHEESHRE

Net cash generated from operations R EE VISR 24 43,067 11,625
Overseas income tax paid EAEINT ST (6,908) (5,826)
Overseas income tax refund BINTIS TR T 52 -
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBFNEH (186) (215)
Net cash generated from operating KeXBEE RS

activites —— EEEREEE 5,584
Cash flows from investing activities REFTHELEZEHERE
Interest received BB 171
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE % - BE MR 14 (6,105)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant  H &M% - BE NEE

and equipment Fr838 407
Decrease in amount due to an associate JE - — B & & R FR0A

e 3

Net cash used in investing activities RELDBAZASFE 0 UL (5,524)
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHELEZHERE
Interest paid BEAFE (2,496) (2,438)
Dividends paid to the Company's BIRTARARIKR LS

shareholders (2,000) (2,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 & T IEFE R iEzs 2 % &, (1,692) -
Repayments of short-term bank loans EEEBRRITER (652,220) (648,115)
Repayments of finance lease liabilities EEREHESRE (1) -
Proceeds from short-term bank loans K HRITE RS 631,698 655,915
Net cash (used in)/generated from mEEE (B EEZ

financing activities b pees 3,362
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
AEBERER

For the year ended 31st March 2017 Bl E —E—+tF =H=1+—HIFE

Net increase in cash and

RERBRESEED

cash equivalents B nEEE 3,422
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FEYzHEERRSZEEYD

of the year 39,963 45,235
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes e R e ) 8 936 (8,694)
Cash and cash equivalents at end FERZESRBESZEY

of the year
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRRSZED

cash equivalents: RO
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERS 45,738
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B R M

R EE———=

2.1

General Information

Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading
and distribution of electronic parts, components and equipment
and computer products and mobile accessories and trading of
cosmetic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are set out in the Company’s annual report.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs") and disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ard
&F

R EEEEE—S———S———————

2.1

(a)

f

AR A B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

New standards and amendments to existing standards effective for
annual periods beginning 1st April 2016, relevant to the Group’s
operation and adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

HKFRS 14
Amendments to HKFRSs

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

The Group has adopted these standards and the adoption of these
standards did not have a significant impact on the Group's results
and financial position.

There are no other new standards or amendments to standards that
are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or
after 1st April 2016 that are expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

2

2.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B R M

R EE———=

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

New standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretations which have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginning on 1st April 2016 and have not been
early adopted:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Related
Amendments'

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 16 Leases?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sales or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture?
Classification and Measurement
of Share-Based Payment
Transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts™’

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses*

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property’

; Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018.

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2019.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2017
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2017 or

1st January 2018, as appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B R M

R EEEEE—S———S———————

2.1

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1st April 2016 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below:

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with customers”

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue
is recognized when control of a good or service transfers to a
customer. The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects of applying the new
standard on the Group’s financial statements. At this stage, the
Group is not able to estimate the impact of the new rules on the
Group's financial statements. The Group will make more detailed
assessments of the impact over the next twelve months.

HKFRS 15 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after
1st January 2018. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt
the standard before its effective date.
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A B R M
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2.1

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1st April 2016 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below: (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 “Leases” addresses the definition of a lease, recognition
and measurement of leases and establishes principles for reporting
useful information to users of financial statements about the
leasing activities of both lessees and lessors. A key change arising
from HKFRS 16 is that most operating leases will be accounted
for on balance sheet for lessees. The Group is a lessee of various
properties which are currently classified as operating leases.
HKFRS 16 provides a new provisions for the accounting treatment
of leases and will in the future no longer allow lessees to recognize
certain leases outside of the consolidated statement of financial
position. Instead, when the Group is the lessee, almost all leases
must be recognized in the form of an asset (for the right of use) and
a financial liability (for the payment obligation). Thus, each lease
will be mapped in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position. Short-term leases of less than twelve months and leases
of low-value assets are exempt from the reporting obligation.
The new standard will therefore result in an increase in assets
and financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position. As for the financial performance impact in the statement
of comprehensive income, straight-line depreciation expense on
the right-of-use asset and the interest expenses on the lease
liability are recognized and no rental expenses will be recognized.
The combination of a straight-line depreciation of the right-of-use
asset and the effective interest rate method applied to the lease
liability will result in a higher total charge to profit or loss in the
initial years of the lease, and decreasing expenses during the latter
part of the lease term. The new standard is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1st January 2019. The Group does
not intend to adopt the standard before its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK (IFRIC) interpretations that are
not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.
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2.2
221

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognized
directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealized gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. When
necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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2.2
221

(b)

(c)

222

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration
paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.
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R EEEEE—S———S———————

2.3

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investments
in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon
the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognized in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the amount
adjacent to ‘share of loss of associates’ in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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2.3

2.4

2.5
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognized
in the Group's financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor's interests in the associates. Unrealized
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars (HK$), which is the Company's functional and the
Group's presentation currency.
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2.5
(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “general and administrative
expenses”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analyzed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss, and other
changes in carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available for sale, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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2.5
(c)

A A B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
end of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences
arising are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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2.5
(d)

AR A B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associate that includes a
foreign operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated currency translation
differences are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognized in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or
joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.6

A A B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Freehold land is stated at cost and not depreciated.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using

the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold properties 60 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.7
(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units
to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognized
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Distribution rights

Expenditures on rights acquired for manufacturing and distribution
of certain integrated circuit (“IC”) products are recognized as an
asset and amortized on a straight-line basis over 4 years to reflect
the pattern in which the related economic benefits are recognized.
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2.8

2.9

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to amortization
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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2.9

(b)

(c)

AR A B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as
non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise
“trade receivables”, “other receivables and deposits” and “cash
and bank balances” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of it
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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2.9

2.10

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date (the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset). Investments are initially recognized
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in
equity are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as “net gains and losses from equity on disposal/impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of other income
when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.11
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.11
(b)

2.12

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, the Group uses the criteria refer to (a) above.
In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If
any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss.
Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
purchases of raw materials.
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SR BB R R

2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2  FEEFIBORME »)
Policies (continued)

2.13 Trade and other receivables 2.13 IR 5 MRk B L b W sk JH
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for EWESERABEEEEKBREPHRD
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of EWmRCiREREERTFHRIE -
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in fin] FE W B 5 BR 30 K HL th JiE WO R IE T8 B ]
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business R—F gz ARE (HDEFEK 2 — R
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are EIEHF - BIRIER) - A9 EARBE
presented as non-current assets. EoRA - EIFERBEEFET] -
Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value FENE 5 BR R K H At FE BGRIB A 2P LAY
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective FEMER - Hig AER A R HK
interest method, less provision for impairment. RONBRBERE)GTE o

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents 2.14 BlERBEFMEY
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash EFeRenegxrt HRekIAeEE
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, MBEFERS  RITERBAFRR
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities JRTEZIH B 7= = & A sk LA T /9 H 52 53
of three months or less. mmEERE -

2.15 Share capital 215 AR
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. TR DB RER
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares BT RS R EE A 2 FTIG A
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the R IIEPTSRIE 2 R (E MK
proceeds. 18) °

2.16 Trade payables 2.16  FELT B 5 MRk

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.
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2.17

2.18

2.19

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortized
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are initially
measured at the fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.

2

2.17

2.18

2.19

FEGFIECRBE 2

fif

fEENT AR FERER - LHBPEL
RBEAR o BEEZABHK AT -
PRSsRIB(E MR Z KA ) R R (EE
BMZEMERE - DABBEMNEERNEE
M AR A RS R HER o

RIEFBMERINZER  REMRE
REBOIAEREFERLERZR
SRR ERBERT ZBERGRELEE
REORESL - MY EEBEBETEA
REMOKMERE  AFRERKE
AEERBESRB 2 AMNKE - L&
BEERIHAR Y

H
faﬁﬁ
£ {5

=0\

BX

BRRBAE RIELAEEAE
HREREREHREHRGEE AR
128 A& B ERIVER °

fis B A
EERARNELHRERERESR

MBRRGH
MBERERAODEREEEHABARIE
B T B R FE 2 2 B 8 {5 FRIR RS 25K
BOTARBEAXNBESRUAMER
PIBRZBH -

MASEER MBRERAVTNIER
FEFE - MEYIFEERRAFERT
ABRZUBRERAL - RRIATIR

BEHE

. REBEBBEFERIETW [B4E
IARBRERAAEE | ETERR
BRETZEERRE &

. P12 e R 2 SRERR (W A ) iR B
W TR R IR 2 RET A o

BREAKEERQE - —2—tFFRH

79



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B R M

R EEEEE—S———S———————

2.20

(a)

(b)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.20
(c)

2.21
(a)

(b)

A A B

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in independently administered
funds. The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.
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2.21
(c)

(d)

2.22

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any,
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received net of
any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognized as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting 2  FEGFFIBUORBE »)
Policies (continued)

2.22 Provisions (continued) 222 #fhE)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures BRERBEHETECMERASIZHE
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax LAR] R R B B R (BB R B R E AR
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of ZHEBEMSHH AT Rt s - AR
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the MR A 2 BB IE IR R BRI -
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition 2.23  Woa R
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received WasizE Wkl 2 REQTFEFTE -
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods HAEBRHEER ZEWIE - A5 RK
supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. RGN - RERIBEN - s
The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can KIERERE AN SERT 2 © RIRCEF=RR
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic BAREMAETHER  MAKSEEIEG
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have TS ABEMHR (T XXAE) - K
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below. SEFESHERLE

(a) Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized on the transfer of  (a) HEERMBKWEIREEEZRAR X
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with CHREBBERER  BPEXNERTHE
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and title has PREGEER 2 RHEER -
passed.

(b) Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. (b} MEWAFKAERNEERER - BEK
When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying FELRAE  AEEeNEEERE
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future HalEl €% @ AJREeBER/ETER
cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the REBRMEMR 2B ERERE
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest AR BB R B AER B A - ER(AERE
income. Interest income on impaired receivables is recognized WsRIE 2 M BIR A IR R A B R T R AER o
using the original effective interest rate.

(c) Service income, management fee and commission income are  (c) RIS A ~ BB KA WA RREHR

recognized when the services are rendered.

TERFHERR o

BREAKEERQE - —2—tFFRH
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2.24

2.25

2.26
(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property
and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liahility for each period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of
the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized
as a liability in the Group's and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to

the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.
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2.26
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.26 Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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(a)
(i)

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. Group
treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China, South
Africa, Malaysia, Singapore, Taiwan and Thailand and is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to United States dollars (“USD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognized assets and liahilities and net investments in foreign
operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the foreign exchange
risk is not significant and the Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risk exposure should the need arise.

(a)
(i)
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREEMe)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 WMBERBEEEE)

(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) mEE R ()

(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) SMNE R Bz ()

TREFRAEANAREEERAH
ATERD - THARMERERTE
ZHERT « AR B8 B I %

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the reporting
date to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before

income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities).

TEXRFREAERE L HEE -

2017 —E—tF
If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD fWErat i ETRE
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD e ETHHE
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD WM T ETEE
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD HF M TR ETTHE
If South African Rand weakens against USD WEERELELRE
If South African Rand strengthens against USD {43 sEESH E T FHE
2016 ZERE
If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD fWErat i ETRE 5% (378) -
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD WA ETHE -5% 378 -
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD AT T A E TR E 5% (24) -
If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD fHEFT KT R ETHE -5% 24 -
If South African Rand weakens against USD fHREE SR ETRE 5% (90) -
If South African Rand strengthens against USD WEEBEEETHE -5% 90 -
o Excluding retained profits * T RIEE TR T
(ii) Price risk (ii) EfE R

The Group is not exposed to significant price risks during the years

ended 31st March 2017 and 2016.

BE_Z2—+t&FRrk-_ZFTE—XF=AH
T HLEFE AEBYEERBEKR
EigREE -
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)  Market risk (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk
The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest-
rate risk. Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policies. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before income tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings) and the Group’s equity.

3

3.1
(a)
(iii)

R EEEEE—S———S———————

% R B B B )

o 5 L o IR 6 (42

A E S (1)

B n R A FEFFAR
AEBEZFREHRBRTSRE LTS
BRITEE  IHF KRB Y BEEH
AEBAEHBRSRENRAR - A%
Bit BB e Y HERRA NS RENE
2URTE o 755 B 3 B U0 4 AT R R S
%o R EEE-—BEEMXEAR
WG BEE O E AT R ER o

TERBREMERMEBGRTE K
KEBRAEHANEN(EREREEZF
BIRAEERSHAEAEHREEE
B HRE -

2017 —E—tF

Floating rate borrowings FEREE

Floating rate borrowings pERSR=y

2016 —E-REF

Floating rate borrowings EEEE 50 (504) -

Floating rate borrowings HEEE (50) 504 -
* Excluding retained profits * NEIERB i T
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3.1
(b)

(c)

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the counterparty
is managed at an early stage and sufficient provision is made for
possible defaults. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

At 31st March 2017, the Group had several short-term bank loans
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$80,200,000 (2016:
HK$100,828,000).

3
3.1
(b)

(c)
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3  Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEREEHe)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 WMEEEEEE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) (c) TmEBELEREGE)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities
as at the reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:

AEEeREENBERREAHEZS
KRR B BIERMNT

2017 “E-t%
Trade payables ERESEHN 31,627 31,627 31,627
Other payables and accruals — E i EfH50E
RESER 22,616 22,616 22,616
Finance lease liabilities BEMERRE 174 15 14 65
Short-term bank loans RERTER 290 80,650 80,650 80,200
134,968 135,021 134.568
2016 ZEF
Trade payables ERESER 31,692 - - - 31,692 31,692
Other payables and accruals  E 4 fER 3B
RIEHER 18,176 - - - 18,176 18,176
Amount due to an associate S —REES A A
B 13 - - - 13 13
Short-term bank loans BHRTER 2.68 101,346 - - - 101,346 100,828
151,227 - - - 151,227 150,709
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3.2

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including short-term banks loans)
less cash and cash equivalents.

The Group's strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratios at
31st March 2017 and 2016 were as follows:

Total borrowings
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

fEERE

B Re RBREEFED

% R B B )

25 A e 5 7

FEEEREAY BIEAREAEET
FRGR Y B - HET 8 AR BT AR £ B 3R
RAHMEREE ABENN  URE
& S A URE S SR o

REFRABELERE  AEEAHE
AR ZEEER - RREALDR
BT R EBERE

AEBREERBLRERERN - It
RNREBFEGAESEETE - &
BERLREEAR(BEREHRTE
FORBERASEEWHE -

AEBZREEFTE - R _F—+LF

R-E-—AF=A=t+—HAZAEAE
BT

80,200
(45,738)

100,828
(39,963)

34,462

181,121 181,580

Net debt BERFER
Total equity W 4ARE
Gearing ratio AEAMALE

19%
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AT

AR A B

3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 MRS
3.3  Fair value estimation 3.3 AFafkE
The different levels have been defined as follows: BERATEDT :
° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical . HEEEXaBEIRME YR
assets or liabilities (level 1). BOREHAR)(EF—R) -
o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 . RE-—RBIEZREIN  FIEE
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (BMZE) kM (B RERLT
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) EVBRFEsEERABRAE
(level 2). (=) o
o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on . WIKBEBRMSTIEEE A
observable market data (that is, unobservable input) (level EXBERAEBEBRZRMSH
3). ANBE)(EB=H) -
At 31st March 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have any financial RZE—tFRZFE—R"EF=ZA=+—
assets and liabilities that are measured at the above fair value B ANEBEWETAZELERAFEFE
measurements hierarchy. BRItEZ eMEEREE -
There were no significant transfers of financial assets between FRN - F—H BBRE=ZF2EL
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. BEMEASHEEEY -
3.4 Financial instruments by category 34 ARETHEER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZEeMIARNINBE BB ZREEN
instruments at the reporting date are as follows: T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables: B R FEWIE
— Trade receivables —EWE SRR 47,078
— Other receivables and deposits —Hi R E RRS 17,672
— Cash and bank balances — R MIRTTHERS 45,738
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Amortized costs: BERA
— Trade payables —ENE ZERR 31,627 31,692
— Other payables and accruals — E A R RUE
FEFT &R 22,676 18,176
— Finance lease liabilities —REREaE 65 -
— Amounts due to an associate — e —FE B 2 D B FOA = 13
— Short-term bank loans —RHIRTTER 80,200 100,828
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(a)

(b)

©

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand
and competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting date.

Estimated recoverability of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on ongoing assessment of
the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and
current market conditions, and requires the use of judgments and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables at the end of each reporting period.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisditions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the amount of the
provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

4

(a)

(b)
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HEREENAREL -

AEEBARBEL AT RER - BRE
& AUMELZEFHAAZEIR
HEAERER - TXHwREHT —EH
BEEZEERABERAERAFLER
HEZBEARBRGF RERR

Rz v BE
FEZAZRFE/BEXEBEBEPRGK
AEERTEEHERXZHRE - %F
EEDRBRITTREBEUEEEMRZ
BEHSEREL - EPBREHRE
FHFZTHHESHRMAEAELERXR
25 EEERERENHEEBEH
HEZE A

R WA B M sk e Lt IR WALk YL 2 AV
] i ] £ EE
AEEEEBRHENGHBREFIREZ AT
EIF2/E - ATLIEWE 5 8RR e H B IR
FREERERE - WRFEDRER
EREMEBAZEECHZRETHR
BE  LWAERHE LG - EEER
EREMEEEBEHTHRKE S K
FRN E A FE MR IR 2 R (B B o

it #53 #¢

AEBABMZEREERZAEHR
REEFRSHRERSER  AEHEX
HIET REEEBERET  ETRHK
PIstEREBBAEEISTE - HEES
R &R FBABREY F R 2 HBN
Rl ZEZRBEELEBREMEZ
ENEAPRS I BIE P S B B B R & -
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AT I B R

R EEEEE—S———S———————

5

Revenue and Segment Information
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows:

L&Y Tig Vg

FABR 2 WEMT ¢

Revenue g

Sales of electronic components, automation
parts and equipment KiEse

Sales of computer products, mobile
accessories and service income

Sales of cosmetic products fHE b

HEEFLIE - A8Aart

HEEMER - TH
FC LA B2 AR A5 UL A

350,913 405,240

108,169 107,774
168,689 171,360

627,71 684,374

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources; they have
also determined the operating segments based on these reports.
Upon the expansion of the trading of cosmetic retail business,
the Executive Directors have further considered the business
from product perspective and have assessed the performance of
three main business segments: (i) Electronic Trading Business
— Distribution of electronic components, automation parts and
equipment; (i) Computer Business — Retail sales of computer
products, mobile accessories, distribution of computer products
and provision of IT outsourcing and solution services and (iii)
Cosmetic Retail Business — Retail sales of cosmetic products.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on segment results before corporate
expenses, finance costs and share of loss of an assaciate.

ARBEEEATES([RTEE]D)
REIBRERRE -PTEFCEHA
SEZABRE  UFERRARSEER
B BENEREZEREEECLED
B-EMREELHRTERBER 2
TEERERARE - TEREB N
BEEEEXRBOBZRE - (IETEE
X -—o#HETLH BBAEFRE
2 (IBREH —EMER - FTRENT
XK DHEREMREHREAR K
E o N R T B AR TS R (i e in T 5
B—tmTER -

MTEZCRENBREEMS - BEK
AREE—HBERTBERMNZ D EE
BIHEREDBZRA -
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5  Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 — Wi K/ BE B #)

The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2017 are as HE-_ZT—tEZA=Z+—HLEE
follows: DEEENT :

Revenue W 350,913 108,169 168,689 627,11

Segment results DEEE 9,809 (1,528) (6,577) 7,285 8,989
Finance costs BB (2,496)

Profit hefore income tax BRATE B ADER 6,493
Income tax expense (Note 9) Frigfiim s (P7E9) (5,241)

Profit for the year FEREF 1,252

Other segment items included in ~ E4t 5| AR A BHEK
the consolidated statementof 2 H4EBEEMT :
profit or loss are as follows:

Depreciation e

Provision for impairment of EWE FERFURERE
trade receivables

Reversal of provision for EWE ZEFRERER
impairment of trade B
receivables

Provision for slow-moving WIHTERE
inventories
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5  Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 Wz & B & Bl =)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2016 are as BHE_Z— X XF=-A=+t—BHBLFE
follows: DEEENT -

Revenue W 405,240 107,774 171,360 - 684,374
Segment results ok E 17,624 (1,458) 2,192 (745) 18,213
Finance costs BB AR (2,438)
Share of loss of an associate  fE(E—FlL A RIEE (32)
Profit before income tax BT BB AR 15,743
Income tax expense (Note 8) A5 MBSz (FfiEH9) (5,587)
Profit for the year FREF 10,156

Other segment items included in  E 45| A\ s & BxE
the consolidated statementof >4 %Em@EEMT :
profit or loss are as follows:

Depreciation e 1,285 1,258 4,879 - 7422
Provision for impairment of TEWE 5585 FoRE RS
trade receivables 611 - - - 611
Write-down of inventories TFEHR 1,363 - - - 1,363
Reversal of provision for ek SR ERE
slow-moving inventories (2,514) (66) - - (2,580)
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, PHEEFZOEME  BEREE -
inventories, trade and other receivables and cash and bank BFE - ERE SRR H b FEBGRIE DA
balances. Unallocated assets comprise current income tax LB RR1TESG - RO BREERREN
recoverable and other receivables. L [e] B EA T 45 756 I L b JE U RRIE ©
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated DHEABBEKEEE ROHEEES
liabilities comprise items such as other payables and accruals, FHMENKIBRESTER - BERE
current income tax liabilities and short-term bank loans. HaErEBRITEREEE -
Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property, REIFNBDEEREABNE  BEXR
plant and equipment (Note 14). FE(MiEE14) ©
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5  Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 — W2k X5 & Bl =)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2017 and R_E—+E=ZA=Z+—HZHBEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as LEBEBAREBEZBIEEE ZAEIER
follows: FHEENT :

Assets BE 232,539 21,61 49,548 1.210 317,028

Liabilities a1 94,054 6,165 33,614 2,074 135,907
Additions to non-current assets  REIEREEE 2,672 303 1,954 4,929
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2016 and RZE—RNF=ZA=T—HZz2BEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as FEBBEURBEZBLEFEZAREIER

follows: FEEMT

Assets BE 261,318 22,740 53,026 672 337,756
Liabilities a& 39,796 7,498 6,614 102,268 156,176
Additions to non-current assets  REIEREEE 808 95 5,202 - 6,105
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S B e Mk
—

Revenue and Segment Information (continvea) 5 — Wi R BE B2

The Group’s revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia AEBZKREFEREE ZAME -
Pacific, South Africa and Europe. mIERBUNESE -

Revenue g

Hong Kong (country of domicile) EB(EMExR) 435,436 457,848
Asia Pacific By Nz 106,357 132,109

South Africa EES 76,704 82,453
Europe BN 1,888 1,410

Other countries HibER 7,386 10,554

627,711 684,374
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is W B P EBRRA R
located.

Total assets
Hong Kong s 220,992 250,181
Asia Pacific a8 KM [ 30,646 34,658
South Africa m3E 58,120 52,245

309,758 337,084

Associates (Note 16) B AR (M EE16) = -
Unallocated assets ADBEE 1,270
317,028 337,756
Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located. BEB(EIREERER DR o
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5  Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5 W2k & B & Bl =)

Additions to non-current assets REERBEE

Hong Kong G
Asia Pacific ey Nz
South Africa EZE:
Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the REIERSEEREERE DR o

assets are located.

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments MRES B AMEREIIEZIEREE
located in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific and South Africa are ERE(ER T ERRIMN 2 R4 45,139,000
approximately HK$5,139,000, HK$10,497,000 and HK$2,825,000 ¥ 7T~ 10,497,000 %5 7T K% 2,825,000 7% T
respectively (2016: approximately HK$8,817,000, HK$11,386,000 (=T — N4 : D RI% 4588170005 7T -
and HK$739,000 respectively). 11,386,000/ 7 52 739,000/ 7T ) ©
Information about major customers HFREEERZER

No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for Bz —+tHFRER-_ZE—XE=A
the years ended 31st March 2017 and 2016. =ST—HIEEE BEZPIGRELRE

10%ak LA E o
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6  Other Income, Gains and Losses 6  HAbWA ~ uii &g E

Management fee received from an associate ~ B —FREHL AT 2

(Note 26(a)) BB E(Mi7E26(a)
Management fee received from third parties BB =HrEBE
Commission income iGN
Interest income from bank deposits RITEF BUA
Gain on disposals of associates R /N ol
Loss on disposals of subsidiaries HEME A R 2 B8
Other income Efth i A
7  Profit for the Year 7 FEREAH
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/ ERBmAEIE S (GEA) T 24 E
(crediting)

Costs of inventories expensed FEKRAR 471,697 520,084
Employee benefit expense (Note 12) EERAFAX (FFE12) 65,113 64,976
Depreciation of owned property, BEME  WERE

plant and equipment e 6,807 7,422
Provision for impairment of trade receivables — FEUNE ZERFURE R E

(included in general and administrative (BFFA—MR K

expenses) THEEER) 611
Reversal of provision for impairment of JEURE 5 R R E R

trade receivables B[ -
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 1,363
Provision/(reversal of provision) for slow-moving 7§77 & &8,

inventories (included in cost of sales) (BER D)

(BETASEEMNA) 2,601 (2,580)

Operating lease rentals in respect of rented HAMEZRENRE

premises HE 46,490 41,188
Auditors’ remuneration 1ZE AN & 1,028 1,028
Gains on disposals of property, plant and HEME - BE KR

equipment (included in general and ZWa(BEtA—R

administrative expenses) RATBERER) (8) (333)
Net foreign exchange gains (included in M s R (B R A

general and administrative expenses) —METHRERER) (1,573)
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8  Finance Costs 8 HHEMA

Interest expense on short-term bank loans REBRITERAEHAZ

Finance lease charges BEREER
9  Income Tax Expense 9 PR BLE X
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BEENEHEERFAREBELSIRE
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or Bt ERBURFIR16.5% (= Z—X
derived from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits F 0 16.5%) 2 BREAE o BINGH 2 BiIE
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year RE N ERT S M AR E B &
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the BRERER 2B EGHE -

Group operates.

Current income tax BVERFR1S B

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BEFEH

— Overseas taxation —HNETE

— Over provision in prior years — R FE BRI
Income tax expense FrSFim >
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9  Income Tax Expense (continued) 9 BB X #)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the AEERMERANEN 2 RIHERAR
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits BHERMEFE 2 ERBETR @ &
Tax rate as follows: HET

Profit before income tax bR PSR R A

Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 1&2& & 1S5 Fi & 16.5%

16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (ZF—"F :16.5%)
STE I
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEREEZHNE
operating in other countries RARNEBRERzE
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized HARFERZ B AT
FIAEE
Utilization of previously unrecognized B S AT M R R 2
tax losses BIEEE
Over provision in prior years BT FERBREEE
Others EAth
Income tax expense FriSHif =
As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda, HRALD R RN B FRELMA L2 EER
it is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2035. RRA - MR =T ZAFAER R AR
AFERE -
As at 31st March 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of RZF—tHF=ZA=+t—H AKEZ
approximately HK$47,766,000 (2016: HK$40,915,000) available for KB REIA R A /47,766,000 T (=F
offset against future profits (subject to the approval of the relevant —7N4F £ 40,915,000 7T) - ARATIEE R
tax authorities). No deferred tax asset had been recognized in AT G4 85 R R0 ) (R 5 B BB IS e R Bt
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future ERTAER) o W ERBIAEE R
profit streams. The tax losses have no expiry date. RETERIBAE - REABKEFRAARR

EAHR - HIABIRTRE AR -

102 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SR A B R P

R EE———=

10 (Loss)/Earnings Per Share 10 #®B(ER) B

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31st BE_ZT—+t&F=A=+—HLEFEZ
March 2017 is based on the Group's loss attributable to equity BRERNEBEDNERARAEREB AR
holders of the Company of approximately HK$3,763,000 (2016: 1l AN £ B E5 18 493,763,000/8 T (= F — /X
profit of HK$3,766,000) and on the weighted average number of F ¢ 3 3,766,000 T ) RFAE FHIT
200,000,000 (2016: 200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during T 3F B 2 i S 15 22200,000,0000% ( ==
the year. —754F ¢ 200,000,0008% ) 5t & ©

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share is equal to the basic (loss)/ HRARGRBEE_TE—tFR_-F
earnings per share as the Company has no dilutive potential —ARNE=ZA=t+—HLEFEITELM
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 31st March 2017 BEEBTHBEYE2ERTEARAR X
and 2016. BR#BE(BEER) BANETRERNE

18),/BFER

11 Dividends 11 KkE

Interim dividend paid of HK cent 0.5 BIRF B BB AR E AR

(2016: HK cent 0.5) per ordinary share 0.58(L(=ZZT—RF :
0.5 1l)
Proposed final dividend of HK cent 0.5 BORARHRR B B AR m AR
(2016: HK cent 0.5) per ordinary share 058 (ZFT—RF -
0.5%8(L)

F-AERAST=ARGZEH
ARREFRBENBE=F—A
A=t+—BLEE2 RBREER
BROSHL -

At a meeting held on 23rd June 2016, the directors of the Company I
proposed a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary share in =
&
I

respect of the year ended 31st March 2016.

At a meeting held on 22nd June 2017, the directors of the Company R-ZE—tFNAFT-_HRTZEZE

proposed a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per ordinary share in o ARAEFEBRNBE_Z—+

respect of the year ended 31st March 2017. This proposed final FZRA=T—BHLFEZRAREER

dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial AR5 o St IEBIR A9 R HARR BT

statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained SR EMEHRRINERMBRE - g

profits for the year ending 31st March 2018. NWAREBEZE—_ZT—-—/\F=A=+—HILF
B2 BT mFBR -
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R EEEEE—S———S———————

12

(a)

AR A B

Employee Benefit Expense 12 BB A b X

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMET 60,910
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIS A — EREER

Bl 3,580

Provision for long-service payments REIRG S BHE 486

Total employee benefit expense EERAFM &%
(including directors’ remuneration) (BREEEHS) 65,113 64,976

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contribution to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The employer's and
employees’ contribution is subject to a cap of monthly earnings of
HK$30,000 (2016: HK$30,000).

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 95% owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme
at 13% and 11%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension payments
or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation
payable to the retired employees.

(a)

B & — AL kT A
AEBBAEBRREETH2 Mo Hl
AESEE([BESFTE]) - 8BS
B EEHAGTE  YHBYETEAE
B RERESHE  AKEREES
AEBREEBRA(EERRAHFEAES
FTEIED])5% T A Mzt Bl gtk - BE
kEEBHZK T A UA _ER 530,000/ 7T
(ZZ—7<%F : 30,0008 7C) °

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. (5]
HERLES B AR)E BB RAE
EEZS2HEEAESTE([AES
FrEl)) o RESFTEI D EEBEREE
WHSRAEHNER - BREAESET
2 BEEXREEENREERA(ESR
BR—NMN—FRERBELES) Z13% &
1% B RFZET IR o BREEFBASN + K
SEVEANEBERRARSNRIGR
BB ZHE—FEE - BREBRTHEA
AR EBMBRKNEEZTRKS -
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A B R M

R EE———=

12
(a)

Employee Benefit Expense (continued)
Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to
join the Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The
CPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at
17% and 20%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Central Provident Fund Act, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant government agency
is responsible for the pension obligation payable to the retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the relevant local
governments, which are defined contribution plans. Contributions
are based on certain percentage of the applicable salaries of its
employees in Mainland China and have no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employees monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group's contributions are expensed as incurred.

12
(a)

{& B & A b 3% #)

RN 4 — B Rk GT 8 (42)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. (A5 & &
EWBAR)E BRI IEE ZHL8h
RAEREFE(THFRRBEEFTE]) o F
RABERFTEI D EBEERAE - WHEH
MFEHAFER - BRIBRRABESFE
EEXREEBESAZEERA(ERERF
RRAERIER) 217% % 20%F B mZst &t
Koo BRUEFRBASN - ANE B E A A H
ERRRESNRSGRKERI 2 —F
Eff - EERNKEAEAERRKES
TRKRE o

RIBFPERAEROIPTETER - NEEF
B AR B A B2 & B R KA Bl fF
TR FRAEFAEHEELRFETE -
% Eat 8l A EBMEKEE - HNE
EPBEAMEREERFESE TADLE
g -BREFHRI  AREYLEETFAA
BERERARESNRIRKRBHN 2 E—
FEME - BRERARAEABERR
HREEXFRAKE -

BREPERB S TRARSKED - KE
BrREaEREE ZEARKERAIEL
NORZAEEEGATE R ZHK - K
SEZHFRELER I -
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 % 3 &7 B 443K &
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the BHEZZ—+tF=A=1+—HIEFE
year ended 31st March 2017 is set out below: FESRITBAH 2 MeHIInT :

Executive directors HITES

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure 3lfdin
(chairman) ()

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl e EL T
(chief executive officer) (7TB# %)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEEEE

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BRI A

Mr. Manuel Arnaldo Manuel Amaldo de
de Sousa Moutinho (Note) Sousa Moutinho

S (FEE)

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman4t 4
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFHEL
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric BKERAE
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 # 3 RiTHRARN L )

(continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the HE_Z—R"F=ZA=+—HLEFES
year ended 31st March 2016 is set out below: BEERITHAER 2 e

Executive directors BTES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure 3l

(chairman) (F/E) - 500 15 515
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BEEL L

(chief executive officer) (77H 42 %) - 1,000 15 1,015
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEESE - 650 15 665
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HERLE - 650 15 665
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Manuel Amaldo de

Moutinho (Note) Sousa Moutinho

Je A (FHEE) - 825 - 825

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors

Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman4t 4 80 - - 80

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFEL 120 - - 120

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric BKERAE 80 - - 80

280 3,625 60 3,965

Note: B 5E
Resigned on 1st April 2016. RZZE—RNFEMNA—HEHE -
None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments FN - BHESEHEXRERETAHE
during the year (2016: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the (ZZE—RF &) -FA - BECHE
Group or compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any NFERMEZEERIER - (EARMARE B
director during the year (2016: Nil). ZRESBERHE( ST —RNE  E) -
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13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 # 3 RiTHARMN L )

(continued)

Five highest paid individuals hgEEH AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FERN - AEBREESHEATEE=4
Group for the year include three (2016: five) executive directors (ZE—RF: BAZ2)H1TESF  ®E2
whose emoluments are set out above. Details of the remuneration MEHEREL - TREB (T —RE -
for the year of the remaining two (2016: Nil) highest paid BV IEAR AR EENIETHRER 2SS
employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of the FEE Y ERNTEIEBOT

Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e AR

in kind HAh B Y& A
Employer’s contributions to defined EREMtHE Sz
contribution scheme EEHK
The emoluments of each of these highest paid individuals whose FHMNTUTHE  ZeHEEZHE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: B

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z751,000,00078 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual FR o WERERALTZAHESIEAER
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation SR % M AR BN A AN £ B B 2 2R 3K
for loss of office (2016: Nil). ERBEBME(ZZ—RF  |) -
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14 W% - W Kkt

14 Property, Plant and Equipment

At 31st March 2015 R=%-1fF

ZA=t-A
Cost or valuation KAESEE - 11,342 23,148 20,289 2,946 07,125
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - - 16,542 (16,654) (1,856) (35,052)
Net book amount EEFE - 11,342 6,606 3635 1,090 204873
Year ended 31st March 2016 HE-E-AE

ZR=t-ALERE
Opening net book amount ENEEEE - 11,302 6,606 363 1,080 2673
Exchange differences ERER - 176 (21) (93) (45) 17
Additions K - - 5,097 66 313 6,105
Deficit on revaluation EfiE4 - 1357) - - - 1357)
Disposals e = = (16) (57) (1) (14)
Depreciation ik = (214) (6,191) (626 (391) (7422)
Closing net book amount EREMEE - 10947 5475 3524 99 20942
At 31st March 2016 REE-A%

ZA=t-A
Cost or valuation KAESEE - 10,947 28013 20,15 2,19 61,869
Accumulated depreciation 2iiE - - (22538) (16,630) (1,759) 40.927)
Net book amount ERFE - 10947 5475 3524 9% 20942
Year ended 31st March 2017 BE-E-tE

ZAZT-ALEE
Opening net book amount ENREEE = 10947 5475 3524 9% 034
Exchange differences EiZR S (311) 1 gl 0 (236
Additions RE 2015 - 2147 787 - 4929
Deficit on revaluation BB = (304) - - - (344
Disposals hik= - - - ) - (23)
Depreciation it = (213) (5,512) (658) (424) (6,807)
Closing net book amount EREMFE 2015 10,079 21 3644 612 18,461
At 31st March 2017 WZE-+&

ZA=t-A
Cost or valuation RAESRAE 2015 10079 30,089 20566 2626 65,375
Accumulated depreciation e - - (27.978) (16,922) (2014) (46,914)
Net book amount KA 2015 10,079 211 3644 612 18461

The net book value of office equipment includes an amount of
approximately HK$61,000 (2016: Nil) in respect of assets held

under finance lease.

MAERB EEFERRERERE
THABEZEEXG1000ET(ZF—R
)
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Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 14 3% ~ BB Kkl cz)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2017 and 2016 THEER-_TE—tFR-_T—REF=
of the above assets is as follows: A=+—BZ2RAERGEEITHOT :
2017 —E—+tF

At cost { - 30,089 20,566 55,296
At valuation @ 10,079 - - 10,079

10,079 30,089 20,566 65,375

2016 .

At cost AAE - - 28013 20,154 275 50922
At valuation e - 10947 - - - 10,947
- 10947 28013 20,154 275 61,869

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held HEMHEMNBE BRI IR BAEOF
under a long-term lease. g e
At 31st March 2017, had the leasehold properties of the Group R-ZE—+HF=ZA=+—8 " HX&EH
been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, the ZHEEMETRE £ KR R ES
carrying values would have been approximately HK$4,987,000 i - BIBREE K & 73 494,987,0008 T (=
(2016: HK$5,200,000). T —/<4 15,200,000 7T) ©
At 31st March 2017, leasehold properties with an aggregate RZFE—+tF=A=+—8 ' EEF
net book amount of approximately HK$10,079,000 (2016: E42 % 4910,079,000/8 L (=& — /RN F ¢
HK$10,947,000) have been pledged to secure certain banking 10,947,000 7)) 2 HEMEEEHEAR -
facilities granted by a bank to a subsidiary amounting to ER—RMRTR T —EWE QA AEAL
approximately HK$4,910,000 (2016: HK$3,855,000) (Note 21). 4,910,000/ 7T (=& — /N 4F : 3,855,000/

TO)Z B TIRITRE 2 B 5 (FIEE21) ©
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(a)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
The fair value of the Group's leasehold properties at 31st March
2017 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
on that date by an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. The independent valuer is a member of
Singapore Institute of Surveyors and Valuers, and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuations were arrived at
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its leasehold
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations are
performed by an independent firm of professional valuer. At the
end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each leasehold property, taking into account
the most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group’s annual report date.

14

(a)

Wk ~ W7 Bt o)
AREEENER T —LF=A
=+— B2 AT E TR IR AR B D
BE2BIA ARG EEBMNZEE
172 AT B o 73 fé (AT 4 57 s
AEAREEDHEEE - EHML
REWEGEY AAEEE A KRN
8% - BERGEENELZREYERR
B2 IR BB R -

AEE R ERSI BBEZ FHNKIE
MECBREZHERRIFESFRZIEA
HEH -

FRN - F—HK FARE=HZEL
R -

il {5 e

G EER

AEERIBF-AREBENESK
BIUfhE RAFE  FRMGERBL
BEXMHEMTET RIBERSHEE
5B EFeENMRFHZEHENE
AFEZHE  BEREARROZE
SYfh{E - EEFEMBILAEMETZME
B WEFELBMBRE - EFEEER
RAOBF-REEAKEFHA B R
HERFRER -
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14

(a)

(b)

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Valuation basis (continued)

Valuation processes (continued)

At each financial year end the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(ii) Assess leasehold properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(i) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation techniques
The fair value of the leasehold properties of the Group held for own
use as at 31st March 2017 are classified as Level 2 valuations.

The fair value of leasehold properties for own use is determined
based on direct comparison method, which were making reference
to market observable transactions of similar properties and adjust
to reflect the conditions and locations of the subject property.

The Group leases machinery under non-cancellable finance lease
agreements. The lease term is 5 years, and ownership of the assets
lie within the Group.

14

(a)

(b)

L E Y &L 1))
WA (%)
HERR ()
NEBRREER 5 -

(i) ZEBIUGERESTHNMEEX
BAE

i) FEEENEEEREFEEE
HELRT 228 B

(iii) B HERDETTA o

11E %
R-ZE—+HE=F=+—8  A&EEH
EBRCHEMFE LA TFERSEASE
ZHRAEE -

FIFERZHEEMEZRAVFENERE
BLBOAEE - HE2EME LREY
XUBREFINXS  YEREBYE
ZIRR BN B AT o

AEBREMIHEREHEGEHEE
ez - HEIRHLF  AREEZHEER
BAREKEMEA -
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FEf 8 2
RZTE—+E=A=+—8 HEL
A& B A2 R E#E £ A (MEMobicon (BVI)

15 Subsidiaries 15
Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March 2017, all of which are
held indirectly by the Company (except for Mobicon (BVI) Limited

which is held directly by the Company), are as follows:

LimitedBR4) - EHARREERFHF) © 5
BT

A Plus Computer British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$800,000 100% 100%
Holdings Limited limited liability company REBETRERR TBMR800,000% T
ZBRAHE  ARAT
APlus 2 Computer Limited Hong Kong, Retailing of computer products Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 51%
REFERERAE limited liability company and mobile accessories in L&, 0008
&4 BRAR Hong Kong
REBETERERR
FREHTE
APower Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of computer ~ Ordinary HK$500,000 60% 60%
REIKEEER AT limited liability company products and mobile accessories  Z3EAR500,000/8 7T
&8 BRAT in Hong Kong
REBETERERR
FREHEERAH
AESI (HK) Limited Hong Kong, Provision of information technology ~ Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%
K—Z5(FE) limited liability company services in Hong Kong TR0
ARAR &8 BRAT REBREE AR
Langa Holdings Republic of South Africa, Investment holding in South Africa Ordinary South African Rand 5% 51%

(Proprietary) Limited

limited liability company

EFANE - BRAA

REFETRARR

(‘ZAR") 100
EERIEERE

BREAKEERQE - —2—tFFRH
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bt J& A Wl (42)

15 Subsidiaries (continued) 15

Mantech Electronics Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary ZAR 100 51% 51%
(Propristary) Limited limited liability company parts, components and equipment AR 1008 FE RS
P RAE - BRAR in South Africa
REFETETRE  THR
BREERNH
Maxfair Distribution Limited ~ Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of computer ~ Ordinary HK$100, non- 100% 100%
EERARAT limited liability company products and mobile accessories voting deferred shares
Bt BRAA in Hong Kang HK$1,000,000 (Note i)
REBENERERR LaR00ET ;
FRENHBEERAH ERZRELR
1,000,000 7z (HiEE()
MBM Properties (Proprietary)  Republic of South Africa, Investment and property holding Ordinary ZAR 100 51% 51%
Limited (formerly known as limited liability company in South Africa ERRI0E B
AP Electronics (Proprietary] 33 HLANE - ARAE REFETREERR
Limited) BEENE
(RITBAP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited)
MCU Power Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$1,000,000 100% 100%
REHERAF limited liabilty company parts, components and equipment X &7R1,000,00078 7
5 BRAHE in Hong Kong
NEBETETRN  THR
BREEENH
Milliard Devices Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary HK$1,000,000 10% 10%
FERTHBRAR limited liabilty company parts, components and equipment X &7R1,000,0007 7

&% BRAH

in Hong Kong

RERENETEN  THE

EREEENH
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bt & A ) (42)

15 Subsidiaries (continued) 15

Mobicon (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$10,000 100% 100%
limited liabilty company REBETRERR LRRI0.000ETT
AERNES  ARAT
Mobicon (Taiwan) Limited Republic of China, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary New Taiwan 100% 100%
BEERIRNERA limited liability company parts, components and equipment dollar 5,000,000
hERE ARAA in Taiwan EBR5.000,00057 2%
RABETEFRE  THR
Mobicon Agent Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%
ERAIKEBRAR limited liability company parts, components and equipment  E3BR10,000/5 7T
&% BRAA in Hong Kong
REBENEFRE  THR
Mobicon Electronic Trading ~ PRC, wholly-owned Trading and distribution of electronic  Registered capital 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited foreign enterprise parts, components and equipment HK$2,000,000
(Note i hE - IEEELE inthe PRC & %2,000,0007%8 ¢
ERRETES(RI) RABETEFRE  THR
BB (A i) BEEEANH
Mobicon Holdings Limited Hong Kong, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary HK$10 100% 100%
ERNETEEERAT limited liability company parts, components and equipment  EER10ETT
&% BRAA in Hong Kong
REBETEFRE  THR
Mobicon International Limited  British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100% 100%
limited libilty company ~ REBEITRELER LERI0ET

RBRLES  ARAT

BREAKEERQE - —2—tFFRH
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15 Subsidiaries (continued) 15

Mobicon Malaysia Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$1 100% 100%
limited liabilty company ~ REBETRARR LakET
RBRAHE  ARAT
Mobicon-Mantech British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$1,000 51% 51%
Holdings Limited limited liability company REBETRERR LAR1000ET
ZERNES  ARAT
Mobicon-Remote Republic of Singapore, Trading and distribution of electronic  Ordinary Singaporean 100% 100%
Electronic Pte Ltd. limited liability company parts, components and equipment dollar 300,000
HMKEANE - ARAR in Singapore TR0 0008 KT
WATIRETE TR
ThRERERENH
Mobicon-Remote Malaysia, Trading and distribution of electronic ~ Ordinary Malaysian 95% %%
Electronic Sdn. Bhd. limited liability company parts, components and equipment Ringgit 1,000,000
ERAEG  BRAA in Malaysia 311,000,000
RERESETEFESH SREDMEH
ThRERERENH
Partners 2 Limited British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in Hong Kong Ordinary US$100 100% 100%
limited liability company ~~ REBETRERR EERI00ET
ZBRANE  ARAT
Videocom Technology Hong Kong, Retailing of cosmetic Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%
(HK) Limited limited liability company products in Hong Kong EERIET
ERL(EFR)ERAR &% BRAF REBETBREE
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R EE———=

15

Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(i) The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group. The shares
have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividend, and are not entitled to
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$10 billion had been
distributed to the holders of ordinary shares.

(ii) The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December

in accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not
coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the
Group were prepared based on the financial statements of the subsidiary
for the twelve months ended 31st March 2017.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31st March 2017 (2016: Nil).

Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interests for the year is approximately
HK$22,415,000, of which HK$28,092,000 is for Mobicon-Mantech
Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“Mobicon-Mantech Group”).
The non-controlling interests in respect of the other subsidiaries
are not material.

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interests
Set out below are the summarized financial information for the
subsidiary, Mobicon-Mantech Group that has a non-controlling
interest that is material to the Group.

Summarized statement of financial position

Current B

15

bt & A ) (42)

B RE -

(i) EREREERMUIFARNEERES - %
ERMIEREZRE - TEEZERS - B
RERRNERZEEMNIIK  BHEDK
10,000,000,000/& 7T T & @ARFE B A RIBRSN ©

(ii) RIBEHEERTE  ZMBR R ZHK
FEHEBRT-ZA=+—H  #K%
B A —5 AEBEZEAPBHRERTD
REZHBRRABE_T—tF=A
=t —HIEt AR ZMBRERAES -

EMBARARBE _Z—ttF=H
=+ —HIEFERAERERBEEAD
BOIZEEER(ZT—RF:H) -

K IR P B A

AN E 2 FEVE AR %5 48 FE 5 4922,415,000
P& 7T + FHR28,092,0007% It 5% & 7 Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited X H i B 2 A
([ Mobicon-Mantech%£ & |) o B KB A A
2 IS W N E K o

EEEAFLRER ZHENE 2
LA & 4t B /&8 /2 ] Mobicon-Mantech 52 & 2
B 75 E K ZE © Mobicon-Mantechs2 & B 5
HAEEN S BEAZIEIERMES -

HBERRRBE

54,782
(15,707)

51,665
(11,070)

Assets BE
Liabilities =L
Total current net assets MENVE ER AL

39,075

BREAKEERQE - —2—tFFRH

117



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

oy

S B e Mk
—

15 Subsidiaries (continued) 15 MHEAE )
Material non-controlling interests (continued) ORI B 4k ()
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with EBEEAFLZRIES ZHE LA 2B
material non-controlling interests (continued) BREE(E)
Summarized statement of financial position (continued) BN ARG E(E)
Non-current FERE
Assets AE
Liabilities as
Total non-current net assets EREBEEFEET 2,825
Net assets BEZE 41,900
Summarized statement of comprehensive income TE WK RHE
Revenue 7 76,552
Profit before income tax & FT 1S A4 A 14,045
Income tax expense FiiSRip s (4,699)
Profit for the year F % F) 9,346 15,131
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hih2mEW A (BZ) 6,023 (8,044)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRE2EBALE 15,369
Total comprehensive income allocated to DI T IR 2
non-controlling interests FEWALLTE
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ER T IR R 2 IR B
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15 Subsidiaries (continued) 15 FMBAE )
Material non-controlling interest (continued) ORI e 55 (42)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with BEEEAXHEZERERZHBLTZHE
material non-controlling interests (continued) BREE(E)
Summarized statement of cash flows HEmEXRHE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBELECRERE
Cash generated from operations CEEACES 20,293 7,954
Overseas income tax paid BAIEINTER (6,743) (5,681)
Net cash generated from operating activities — K& EKEL 2R & /55 13,550 2,273
Net cash used in investing activities & HEEN A IR FE (2,075) (93)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RMEEE(BA) ELr
financing activities IRE H%E (12,233) 2,814

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BRERESZEY

equivalents (R4, /1 nFEE (758) 4,994
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FE RS RESEEY
of the year 3,682 5,306
Exchange losses on cash and bank balances BeRIRTTHESRZ
b 5 &8 540 (6,618)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~ FR&R7HE MRS ZEY 3,464 3,682
The information above is the amount before inter-company B R AR EL B RA F HEE AT
eliminations. ZEBF e
Transaction with non-controlling interests BIEERERZ RS
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary W kg — R 2 BIBE S 2
On 11th November 2016, the Group acquired an additional 49% RZZT—R"F+—A+—8  x5EEK
of equity interests in A Plus 2 Computer Limited for a purchase BRE D EIKAGR A I INI% IR A #E
consideration of HK$1 and in favour of a waiver of loan of = BEREARIET  LESHEER
approximately HK$4,067,000. The negative carrying amount #74,067,000/87C - RIEEBE - RRES
of non-controlling interests in A Plus 2 Computer Limited on BRERA A ZIEERER 2 AKREME
the date of acquisition was approximately HK$3,810,000. The #97$3,810,0007 7T ° AL B HERIEIT AR
Group recognized an increase in non-controlling interests of 7 1% fN%93,810,000% T R AR A BB A FE
approximately HK$3,810,000 and an increase in equity attributable fl HE2S 1 AN #9257 00078 7T °

to owners of the Company of approximately HK$257,000.
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16 Interests in Associates 16 JABEE AR Z Rt
(a) Interests in associates (a) RBEEAFZHELR

Beginning of the year F4

Exchange differences 5=

Share of loss FE1E 1B

End of the year F1x
Details of the associates of the Group as at 31st March 2017, AEER-_ZT—tEF=A=+—HZ
which are unlisted, are as follows: JEEMBERAFBENT

Create Tech Software Hong Kong, limited Design of computer software Ordinary HK$150,000 30%
Systems Limited liability company in Hong Kong EEAR150,00075 T
(*Create Tech”) &8 BRAT REBETEREAR
MEREEARAR
(Trelt])
Mabicon Electronic Thailand, limited Trading and distribution of Ordinary Thai Baht 49%
Supplies Co., Ltd. liability company electronic parts, components 2,450,000
#E BRAR and equipment in Thailand LR 450,000% 8%
RREETETEL  Th
REEEEEDH
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interests A AE A 3 SR B (S BN B B D T
in the associates. SHEXAR -
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16 Interests in Associates (continued) 16 RBEAFZHELR2)

(a) Interests in associates (continued) (a) WREBEEAFZHELR (&)
Summarized financial information for associates BELNAZHBEEREE
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually EIFITBEA B &1 5] 2 [EAEE
material

The Group's share of loss REE L EE

The Group's share of other comprehensive AEEEGEMEEMY
expense

The Group's share of total comprehensive AEBEGEMA B

expense
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's AREBREE AR Z
interest in associates s 2 BREAEE
Unrecognized share of loss of an associate KR IEN — B &R AlEE

The unrecognized share of loss of an FARRERENS —H

associate for the year BN B ETE
Cumulative share of loss of an associate RitrE(R—FEE A A
E518
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16
(b)

©

17

Interests in Associates (continued)

Amount due to an associate

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable within one year.

Disposal of associates

During the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with Mr. Yeung Wang Sang, a
shareholder of Create Tech to dispose of its entire 30% interests
in Create Tech at a consideration of HK$6,720,000 which will be
settled by rendering of maintenance services.

During the year ended 31st March 2017, the Group disposed of its
entire 49% equity interest in Mobicon Electronic Supplies Co., Ltd.
upon deregistration.

Gain of disposals of approximately HK$6,667,000 had been
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31st March 2017.

Inventories

Electronic parts, components and equipment
Computer products and mobile accessories

Cosmetic products {bAah

16
(b)

()

17

EFEM - T RESR
B m M T E

RS ARl Z LR ()

WA — B 2% 4 )k

N —REBAATREAEER 8
BAR—ENEE -

B T 2 )
RBE-ZE—+tF=A=+—HLHF
B - A EEHEIE 2 %R Yeung Wang
SangsE AEFT M B E sk - HEERNFAIR
Z2H30%Em -+ A& 46,720,000 7T
BERBREEESRERE 2 XM -

REE_ZT—tF=ZA=+—HLHF
f& + 7K £= [B] 7£ Mobicon Electronic Supplies
Co., Ltd HisH M - HEERZ AR Z
2 HA9% A RS o

U 2549 46,667,000 7T - EREZEZ
T—+FZA=+—HIFEZHEIE
ﬁé%ﬁﬁ%ﬁm °©

8

133,052
16,771
29,719

149,260
12,056
31,447

179,548 192,763
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18 Trade Receivables 18 MEWE 5 W
The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for AEB—RETEEFPZ2EERFENH
sales of goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The following is an aged TRAZENBERE - REIBAFEZI 2R
analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, WE SRR (EMBRRERE) KRB
presented based on due dates. N

0 to 60 days ZTE60H 46,109 56,863

61 to 120 days 6121204 71117
121 to 180 days 12121808 54
181 to 365 days 1812365H 198
47,078
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the REEBHAZ Z&REEERRK R E
fair values of trade receivables. There is no concentration of credit WEBSERZATFE - HRAKERF
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large FARS  HERESERERFTEILEE
number of customers. The Group does not hold any collateral as P EERR AEEVTERHEKES
security in respect of its trade receivables. BRI A AR mERER -

BREAKEERQE - —2—tFFRH 123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BB A

18 Trade Receivables (continued) 18 JEWHE 5k 2)
As at 31st March 2017, trade receivables of approximately RZZT—tF=A=+—H ' 417,812,000
HK$17,812,000 (2016: HK$26,542,000) were past due but not BIT(ZE— 7N ¢ 26,542,00078 7T ) 2 FEUR
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for BOBRREBHEYERE - ZERKE
whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of 5 R SR L R S HE KB FUAC SR B TR
these trade receivables is as follows: NEFPEH o ZERKE HERZERS
W

Up to 60 days T %5608

61 to 120 days 612120H
121 to 180 days 1212180 H
181 to 365 days 1812365H
As at 31st March 2017 and 2016, none of trade receivables has RZE—tEFRZT—ARF=A=1—
been assigned to a bank with recourse as collateral under factoring H  WEEKESEREBERN L
arrangement (Note 21). BETIRITIEARER  YHEBRE
(BIzE21) o
As at 31st March 2017, trade receivables of approximately RZZE—tEF=A=+—H EKES
HK$243,000 (2016: HK$611,000) were impaired. The amount of AR 3K #9243,0007%8 70 (== — /<4 : 611,000
the provision was approximately HK$597,000 as at 31st March BIT)BERE RZZE—tF=A=+—
2017 (2016: HK$831,000). The individually impaired receivables B2 B &S EH 55970008 T (ZF—X
mainly relate to a few customers, which are in unexpected difficult £ : 831,000 7T) © ERIE HIRRE 2 FE
economic situations. The average age of these receivables is over WERRE B W R D EHE EATER B IR
180 days (2016: over 180 days). Nz EFE - BARKERZ FHER
B0 A E(ZZ—7N4F : 180HA E) -
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables EWE SRR ERE 2 ZBOT

are as follows:

At beginning of the year F9)
Receivables written off as uncollectible =R NI E e S

Provision for impairment of trade receivables  fEULEE 5 BR TR E &
Reversal of provision of trade receivables B E 5 BR U B o)
Exchange differences I

At end of the year FaR
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19 Cash and Bank Balances 19 B4 KRiT &R

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERS

Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount REE 7R & RIRITASREIEL,133,000
of approximately HK$1,133,000 (2016: HK$1,360,000) was BIL(ZZF— /N4 © 1,360,000 ) AAR
denominated in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The KB (E R AT A P B At 2 5REE © H R
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign ZEARBERRINERIEZZESE
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland A B A - 28 AR B I AR A D A1
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange B AR R FOEIRPTARIR o
control promulgated by the PRC government.

20 Trade Payables 20 JBEAHE S MR
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: EAESERRRSITAT

0 to 60 days ZZEE0A 30,723 30,000
61 to 120 days 61Z=120H 146
121 to 180 days 12121801 575
181 to 365 days 18123658 183

31,627
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R EEEEE—S———S———————

21 Short-Term Bank Loans 21 BRI EX
All short-term bank loans are due within one year and denominated FTAERBRITERAR —FAZIH RN
in the following currencies: THEESE

Hong Kong dollar BIT

US dollar X7
Singapore dollar Frnsg o
100,828

The effective interest rates of the short-term bank loans at the RegdE BE - RERITERZ BRI X
reporting date range from approximately 2.44 % to 3.48 % (2016: NF#)2.44%Z%3.48% (= F—7RF : 2.23%
2.23% t0 3.23%). %3.23%) °
The Group’s banking facilities are secured by the leasehold REBZRITBEAREB 2 HEME
properties of the Group (Note 14). (PBEE14) FEHE IR ©
At 31st March 2017, the Group had unutilised facilities of R-TE—+FE=A=+—8  A&EEXk
approximately HK$75,911,000 (2016: HK$56,318,000). B F Rh & 4975,911,0008 70 ( =T — N4 ¢

56,318,000/& 7T,) ©

126 Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AT A B B

22 Finance Lease Liabilities

Amounts payable under finance BEREHEE
leases: FERTRRIE -

Within one year —FR

In more than one year and not more —F&{ERER
than five years

Less: Future finance charges W RRIBE R

Present value of Iease liabilities HEaE HE

Less: Amount due for o T =@ A NEE
settlement within 12 months BRzZE(ERDE
(shown under current liabilities) BT E)

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its fixture and furniture
under finance leases. The lease term is 5 years. At 31st March
2017, the effective borrowing rate was 7.74%. Interest rates are
fixed at the contract date. The lease is on a fixed repayment basis
and no arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental
payments. At the end of the lease term, the Group has the option to
purchase the fixture and furniture at nominal prices.

All finance lease liabilities are denominated in SGD.

il ¥ L 85 £ £

AEBZBREEREREVEARET
KERGM - BHSHE - R=F—+
F=ZRA=1t—RH EREEXRTI% -
MNERENBEMEE - HERBEEE
o BYEAZLEMIAEBENRL
B REEMK  AEEAEEREE
EREEAWRE XM

FrBERERE A B AR INSITAHE -
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23  Share Capital 23 A

Authorized: JETE ¢
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares SREMEIETL

of HK$0.10 each 2 37 % 2,000,000,000% 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR -
200,000,000 ordinary shares SREEI0B T

of HK$0.10 each L3/ 1%200,000,000% 20,000

24 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 24 #ZFAEHERE LM

Cash Flows
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated RATGERANEN EQEERELE RS
from operations: FRER 7 SR

Profit before income tax 4 BT 155 BT % A

Adjustments for: IATIER 2 A%
— Depreciation of property, plant and —ME - BE&
equipment HEEITE 7,422
— Gains on disposals of property, plant and —HEWE - BE
equipment KR EATS (333)
— Interest income —FBUA (171)
— Interest expense —Flepx 2,438
— Share of loss of associates —EIEB L REIBE 32
— Provision for impairment of trade —FEWE SERZ
receivables B 611
— Loss on disposals of subsidiaries - HENRBRARZEE 291
— Reversal of provision for impairment of —EWE 5 RFURE
trade receivables BERD -
— Gain on disposals of associates —HEBE QR 2 KE -
Changes in working capital: EEESEY
— Inventories -G8 19,136
— Trade receivables — U E 5 IR 1,465
— Other receivables and deposits —HibERRER RS (7,932)
— Trade payables —ENE BRI (27,247)
— Other payables and accruals — E fh FE R IE K
FEEH & 170
Net cash generated from operations REEBEEZ
e FHE
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25 Commitments 25 RiE
Operating lease commitments — where the Group is R BRI — AR AR 2 AR AL
the lessee
As at 31st March 2017, the Group had future aggregate minimum RZZE—tF=ZA=+—0  AKER

HEMEZ A REKEHENARE
N&EHENFTABNOT

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of rented premises as follows:

No later than one year —FR 37,102

Later than one year and no later than five years —F&ERFRN 23,616
60,718
Operating lease payments represent rentals payables by the Group KEHERBEAEERE TTES
for certain of its retail outlets, office and warehouses. Leases HoMAEREEEMZzEE -BHHZ
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from 1 to 3 AR —FE=FIF - HeRXH
years_ %W%&ﬁfxﬁz ©
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26 Related Party Transactions 26 BABIANLRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the R 2 BT B R AL B8 0 P AR BR A A
Group had the following significant related party transactions AEERFABUATERNBMALTRS ¢

during the year:

(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and  (a) AEBHBEBALTETZIEARZHB
related parties are summarized below: B

Services fee received from an associate B U EL—REEL N aE] > (ii)

IR & -
Management fee received from BB —HEEE QR (i)
an associate ERE 156
Maintenance fee paid to an associate EXM—MHEARZ (iv)
H®iEE 643
Purchases from an associate e —FEE A AR (iii) -
Sales to an associate HET RS AT (iii) -
Rentals paid/payable to M-Bar Limited 237,/ 3z {sfM-Bar (v).(xi)
Limited 2 & 2,943
Rentals paid/payable to UGD Property B3, FEXFUGD (vi),(xi)
(Proprietary) Limited (“UGD Property”) Property (Proprietary)
Limited (TUGD
Property|) 2 f & 829
Rentals paid/payable to Tiger Moth Bt N Tiger (vi),(xi)
Trading No.53 (Proprietary) Limited Moth Trading No.53
(“Tiger Moth”) (Proprietary) Limited
(I Tiger Moth J)
ik 149
Sales to PC Supply Limited and its HETEBEAR (vii), {xi)
subsidiaries (“PC Supply Group”) RRIREWB AR
([BEERPEE]) 1,479
Purchases from PC Supply Group REBREBE RS {vii).{xi) 1,616
Commission income received from BEMmEERER (viii)
PC Supply Group ZAsA 20
Services fee paid to PC Supply Group EXHEEREE (ix)
ZRIGE -
Rental fee received from PC Supply Group B UENVEEHEE (x)
2% -
Consultancy fee paid to RYM B2 32 {RYM Innovation Ltd. (xii)
Innovation Ltd. ZERE -
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26 Related Party Transactions (continued) 26 BN S =)

Notes: B3

(i) Management fee was received from an associate, Create Tech Software (i) REBARRFAIRISRGERAR ([F
Systems Limited (“Create Tech”) at a fixed monthly rate of HK$17,000 IR 2 ERE TR HEAANEE R
(2016: HK$13,000 per month) for use and lease of facilities of the WERzEEEREA170ET(=ZF
Group. The Group disposed of its associate’s interest in July 2016 for a —NE - §A130008T) c AEEBER
consideration of HK$6,720,000. T -RNFLAHEERBE QR ZE

# + {8 36,720,0007 7T

(ii) Services fee received from an associate, Create Tech was conducted in (i) REBERARFAIR 2 REE T BIRE
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting WL HARMRE - E—REBBIED
parties for providing online-marketing related services. RETR % T e 2 ARFEST ©

(iii) Sales to and purchases from an associate, Create Tech were conducted in (iii) BB E N R FAIRHET ZHERKER
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting SER—BEBBERIZITNSHHE
parties. ZETEAT -

(iv) Maintenance fee was paid to an associate, Create Tech at terms as (iv) B T H & AR AIR 2 4 lx;g{')'b?isz
agreed between the contracting parties for providing maintenance of the NEFHEZ GRS R ML
accounting system. BRI AT -

(v) M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic (v) M-Bar Limited B RAIEFER AR ZE
Supplies Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim ﬁ@ﬁ%’& A - BRAIEFARAAHAK
Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung ARIEEFREERF LR EHEL(30%) -
(20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial BEELTL(30%) © L5 & 5 A4 (20%) K 15
shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with M-Bar Limited BRR S HE(20%) B #= A o BAM-Bar Limited
were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties. RN 2 HERZE IR NS A HEZIE

FKETSL e
(vi) UGD Property and Tiger Moth are companies wholly-owned by (vi) UGD Property X Tiger Moth ¥ % Manuel

Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho, a director of the Langa
Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, Mantech Electronics (Proprietary)
Limited, MBM Properties (Proprietary) Limited (formerly known as
AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited), Mobicon International Limited
and Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited and owns 49% interest in
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited. The lease agreements with
UGD Property and Tiger Moth were entered into at terms agreed
between the contracting parties. Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa
Moutinho resigned from directorship of the Company with effect from
1st April 2016.

Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinhosc £ 2B HEA 2
A7) * Manuel Amaldo de Sousa Moutinho %t
4 /3 Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited -
Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited
MBM Properties (Proprietary) Limited ( A &
AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited) ~ Mobicon
International Limited 5  Mobicon-Mantech
Holdings Limited # 3 - I # 4 Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited 49% # 2§ o £
UGD Property K Tiger Mothz] 3 2 F & 17535
TR AT K% 77 1 T Z A& FRET L © Manuel
Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinhot 4 2 B EA A
RIEERE YE-_T—XR"FHA—HB
RBAER ©
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26 Related Party Transactions (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

PC Supply Limited is owned as to 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer
Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus is
beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the Company. Sales
to and purchases from PC Supply Group were conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

Commission income received from Clover Display Limited was conducted in
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

Services fee paid to PC Supply Group were conducted in the normal course
of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

Rental fee received from PC Supply Group was conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

These transactions constituted continuing connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules.

RYM Innovation Ltd. (“RYM") is owned as to 50% by Mr. Hung Lok Tin.
Mr. Hung Lok Tin is the son of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, a director of
Mobicon Group Limited. Consultancy fee paid to RYM was conducted in
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31st March 2017
were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited of approximately
HK$738,000 (2016: HK$654,000).

Included in other payables and accruals of the Group were
amounts due to minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of
approximately HK$1,779,000 (2016: HK$3,304,000). The amounts
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Included in other payables and accruals of the Group were amount
due to a director of approximately HK$nil (2016: HK$1,532,000).
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

26

(b)

(c)

(a)

BHEN LA 5 )

FEE

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(%)

BEEPBRARSAAEBEBEKEER
AR BBEME]) RERELTHS
99.99% [ 0.01%# = c HEABMIEHAR
RIEEHREZREERZHEL(30%) - 15
BB (30%) ~ HE T2 5 A (20%) [ 45 B
BIEENE=ER - HEATHEEE
TZHERFKERZHRN —REBRRE
FIRETHIE 77 1 Z I RH#ETT ©

2 4¢Ex Clover Display Limited 2 A& Y A TS
R—REBBERRITNEH BT Z K
AT o

Eiﬁ%‘*iﬁgzmﬁ%gfﬂﬂfﬁ
BBRTIRFTOE T HE 2 EE

BB EREE ZHEE TN —RED
BIRPIRRT KIS T3 1 5E 2 IRETT

ZERGER ETRBIAE 215 ERM
HERS e

RYM Innovation Ltd. ([ RYM J)ER #E£4 K 5 A&
A% - RERELEAEENER
BERAREZHGEH L IR T - BEX
NRYMZ BB B Jh — MR R BIE P 2T
RVET7 W IE 2 AGFRHETT ©

R-_F—+F=A=1+—H AEEH

1t & Uk X
HEHK&E 4738008 L (==&

T8 B & B X 15 M-Bar Limited 2
—NE

654,000/ 7T ) °

AEBEMENS
S :FWE AL BB RE

Bm(=

KB R B E AR
RIE£1,779,000

T —/ 4 3,304,000 7T) - B

RIAREE - 2 B RARBENRER -

RNEEEEH M E T
N—BESEZR
1,532,000 7C) - BREE

F:

RIE K EAHE A &%V
HAEHT(Z
IE?%?ETKW

RBERBIREREE -
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26 Related Party Transactions (continued) 26 BABINLZR G )
(e) Key management compensation (e) FEZEEA S WO

Short-term employee benefits EHESRET 3,625
Post-employment benefits B2 13 T
Further details of directors” emoluments are included in Note 13 to EEMevE—PHBHARNGEMBR
the consolidated financial statements. K13
27 Disposals of Subsidiaries 27 WEREAF
(a) Disposal of Mobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand) (a) i # Mobicon-Remote Electronics
Co., Ltd (Thailand) Co., Ltd
During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group disposed of its BHE-_ZT-—A"F=ZA=+—HIL*#F
entire equity interest in Mobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand) [E 7N & B 7£ Mobicon-Remote Electronics
Co., Ltd upon deregistration. (Thailand) Co., LtdfBiSHzE& + HEENZ
NAEZ B EBIRAHE RS ©
Consideration received EWKAE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BURREFRSIRESEEY) -

BRAEEERAR - —Z—LtFFR 133



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R e B R M

27 Disposals of Subsidiaries (continued) 27 WEMEBAW @)

(a) Disposal of Mobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand) (a) i # Mobicon-Remote Electronics
Co., Ltd (continued) (Thailand) Co., Ltd(#&)
Loss on disposal of Mobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand) {EMobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand)
Co., Ltd Co., Ltd 2 5515

Consideration received BRE -

Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE -

Cumulative exchange differences released PR REtER =58 (58)

Loss on disposal included in profit or loss for the year FABE-Z—ARF=A=1+—H

ended 31st March 2016 IEFEEEmERZ
HEFrFEE (58)

Net cash movement on disposal of Mobicon-Remote { &Mobicon-Remote Electronics (Thailand)
Electronics (Thailand) Co., Ltd Co., Ltd 235 £ 5 B))FER

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BURRE(REMREEEY) -
Less: Cash and bank balances disposal of B BHEZRe MRTTAR -
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27 Disposals of Subsidiaries (continued) 27 WMEMEAF @)

(b) Disposal of Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited (b)  Hi#Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited
During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group disposed of HEZZ—XF=A=1+—RHLFE "
its entire equity interest in Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited upon NS B 7£ Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited i85
deregistration. e HEERZARZ 2 EHRARE

%o
Consideration received EWEE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents EWRECEERREEEY) -
Loss on disposal of Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited 4 & Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited 2~
BB

Consideration received BHRIE -

Net assets disposed of BEHECZEEFE -

Cumulative exchange differences released CER 2 ELESR (233)

Loss on disposal included in profit or loss FABEZZ-RF=A=1+—H

for the year ended 31st March 2016 IEFEBR@mE
2 HEMEER (233)

Net cash movement on disposal of Suntronika (Proprietary) 4 & Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited =
Limited B2 HE)FEE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BEBRECGEERREEEY) -
Less: Cash and bank balances disposal of W BRE RS RRITER -
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27
©

Disposals of Subsidiaries (continued) 27 WEWEAR @

Disposal of A Power Limited (¢ HMEEMLITERAGRAN

During the year ended 31st March 2016, the Group disposed of its HE-_ZT—X"XF=-A=+—HLFE"
entire equity interest in A Power Limited upon deregistration. AEEBFEFTTREEGR A THEHEEM

& HEHEHRZARZZHRAEL -

Consideration received EWRE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BERRERELRESEED) -

Gain on disposal of A Power Limited HEEBEL THEARL Az W

Consideration received BRE -
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE -
Cumulative exchange differences released BHER s REENERE -
Gain on disposal included in profit or loss FABEZET-R"F=A=1+—H
for the year ended 31st March 2016 IEFEEEE
2 HE G -
Net cash movement on disposal of A Power Limited HEEFL TRERAFIZHE2EE)FEE

Consideration received in cash and cash equivalents BERAREGRERBEEED) -
Less: Cash and bank balances disposal of B BHEZHR S RIRTTERS -
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28 Statement of Financial Position of the 28 AA W ZMBRNELAL

Company and Movement of Reserves of the w) Z Gl i 52 )

Company

As at 31st March 2017 WR_F—LHE=A=1+—H
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (a) KRB 2B R

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBRATZIEE 100,640 100,210
100,640 100,210
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary ek — RSB B A Bl 21| 14,216 5115
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRITES 83 83
14,299 5,198
Total assets EEHAE 114,939 105,408
Current liabilities =Rt
Other payables and accruals HiE N ZRB R ESER 21 24
21 24
Net current assets REEEEE 14,278 5174
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRADER 114,918 105,384
Net assets BEEEE 114,918 105,384
Capital and reserves attributable to the ANTRERBEA
equity holders of the Company P15 B AN I e 4
Share capital RN 20,000 20,000
Reserves s 94,918 85,384
Total equity RS 114,918 105,384
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved RRRZHBRAKRERZZE—LF R
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 22nd June B-t-REZE=ef £ RIFET -
2017 and signed on its behalf by: YHTIHEERREZTSHE
HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
C]i’:}/rman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
FE B F EFRITEARE,
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28 Statement of Financial Position of the 28 A2 Al % RMNERLAL

Company and Movement of Reserves of the w2 Gl 52 W) )

Company (continued)

As at 31st March 2017 (continued) R-ZLE=A=1T—H#E)
(b))  Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AR A2 FEEE

Balance at 1st April 2015 RZE—1F
mMA—A
EEH 16,706 67,097 1,988 85,791
Profit for the year FREF - - 1,593 1,593
Dividends Y5 . - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at 31st March 2016 R-T—RF
=A=+-8
i 16,706 67,097 1,581 85,384
Balance at 1st April 2016 RZE—RF
mMA—A
2 16,706 67,097 1,581 85,384
Profit for the year FREF - - 11,534 11,534
Dividends P B - - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at 31st March 2017 R-B—+tfF
=A=t-AH
2 16,706 67,097 11,115 94,918
Representing: R
2017 final dividend B+
REIAR 2 1,000
Others Hi 10,115
11,115
Note: Bt 5
Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value of the MARBIERNTFARTEBR 2 EE - EGRE
ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of subsidiaries T —FNA+ NBETZEEAIBRMDATE
acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took BRI ZEEFEZ =5 °

place on 18th April 2001.
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A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the ~ AEBERAREMRFE 2B AhEHEREEH
Group for the last five financial years is set out below: BEMMRNT

Results e

Revenue Uz 621,11 684,374 695,057 603,276 545,887
Profit before income tax BT SR ADGE F 6,493 15,743 17,940 9,242 7,803
Income tax expense FrisRif (5.241) (5,587) (6,159) (3,911) (2,667)
Profit for the year ERHF 1,252 10,156 11,781 5,331 5,136
Attributable to: A
Equity holders of the Company AREMERHAA (3,763) 3,766 7,789 1,013 1,134
Non-controlling interests IR RS 5,015 6,390 3,992 4,318 4,002
1,252 10,156 11,781 5,331 5,136
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Assets and Liabilities M afE

Property, plant and equipment ME - BE K&K 18,461 20,942 22,673 26,351 21,261
Interests in associates RSN T2 RS - - 39 17 68
Other receivables Hib g 5,376 - - - -
Current assets TENEE 293,191 316,814 335,207 298,191 273,664
Total assets BEEHE 317,028 337,756 357,919 324,559 294,993
Current liabilities TEEE (135,855) (156,176) (176,054) (142,129) (112,688)
Net current assets REEETE 157,336 160,638 159,153 156,062 160,976
Total assets less BELAERABEE

current liabilities 181,173 181,580 181,865 182,430 182,305
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (52) - - - (40)
Net assets BEEFE 181,121 181,580 181,865 182,430 182,265

Capital and reserves attributable &2 F##EH A
to the equity holders of the bR AR S

Company
Share capital BN 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves 51 138,706 143,456 145,973 144,897 146,263
158,706 163,456 165,973 164,897 166,263
Non-controlling interests FERER 22,415 18,124 15,892 17,533 16,002
Total equity A 181,121 181,580 181,865 182,430 182,265
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